
AGENDA 
MAPLE PLAIN CITY COUNCIL – REGULAR MEETING 

MAPLE PLAIN CITY HALL 
APRIL 14, 2014 

7:00 PM 
 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. ADOPT AGENDA 

 
4. PROCLAMATION 

 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approve March 24 City Council meeting minutes 
B. Approve March 24 City Council workshop meeting minutes 
C. Accounts Payable 
D. Contract for Services Between Medina and Maple Plain for Open to Business 

Program 
 

6. VISITORS TO BE HEARD 
Note: This is a courtesy extended to persons wishing to address the council who are not on the 
agenda. A completed public comment form should be presented to the city administrator prior to the 
meeting; presentations will be limited to 3 minutes. This session will be limited to 15 minutes. 

 
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
8. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

 
9. OLD BUSINESS 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Approval and Authorization of Bids for Main Street West and Rainbow Avenue 
Utility and Street Improvements. Resolution No. 14-0411-01. 

B. Budd Avenue Sanitary Sewer Improvements. Resolution No. 14-0411-02. 
C. City Code 30.35 

 
11. LEGISLATIVE/INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS 

 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
13. ADJOURNMENT 

1



 
 

City Council Meeting Minutes 03-24-14     1 

Maple Plain City Council Meeting 
 Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2014 

Maple Plain City Hall 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Hackbarth called the meeting to order at 7 p.m. 
 
Present: Councilmembers Justin McCoy, Jerry Young, Dave Eisinger and Mike 
DeLuca. Also present were City Administrator Tessia Melvin, City Engineer, Dan 
Boyum and Director of Public Safety, Ray McCoy.  

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. ADOPT AGENDA 

 
Councilmember Young moved to adopt the agenda with the following items 
added: 

 Resolution in Support of Legislation for Alternative Publication 
Options for Cities: Resolution : #14-03-24-02 
 

seconded by Councilmember McCoy. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

4. PROCLAMATION 
There were no proclamations 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Items to approved under the Consent Agenda:  
 

a) Approve February 24 City Council workshop meting minutes 
b) Approve February 24 City Council meeting minutes 
c) Accounts payable 
d) Western Community Action Network Resolution: 14-0310-02 
e) Resolution in Support of Legislation for Alternative Publication Options 

for Cities: Resolution : #14-03-24-02 
 

Councilmember McCoy moved to approve the Consent Agenda; 
Councilmember Young seconded. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
6. VISITORS TO BE HEARD 

There were no visitors present.  
 

  
7. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

2



 
 

City Council Meeting Minutes 03-24-14     2 

         
           There were no public hearings held.  
 

8. ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
 
Public Safety Director, Ray McCoy, presented the March monthly report. Call 
rates are lower this year than in 2013. The Department is currently going through 
the hiring process of two new officers. Gary Kroells was named the new Director 
of Public Safety at the March Police Commission meeting.  
 
City Administrator, Melvin, presented the Planning Monthly Report. Melvin 
reported that Proto Labs is seeking a site plan amendment to allow additional 
parking to be constructed along the northwest property line.  
 
Staff recently met with a new church seeking space for a new worship area. In 
addition, staff met to discuss the City Hall and Gateway development 
opportunities. Staff has also met with two potential buyers of the Villamil property 
and property on Budd Street, respectively.  

 
City Engineer, Boyum, provided the Council an update on the Main Street West 
and Rainbow Avenue project.  

 
9. OLD BUSINESS 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
A. Approval of 2013 Audit Report 

 
Andy Berg, of Abdo, Eick and Meyers presented the 2013 Audit Report to the 
City Council. Berg noted that the City is financially strong and has improved in 
areas of water and sewer funds. Berg did suggest the Council consider a 5-
year budget and capital improvement plan to assist with future projects and 
needs of the City.  
 
Councilmember Young moved to accept the 2013 Audit report and begin 
work on a five-year budget and capital improvement plan; 
Councilmember McCoy seconded. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

B. Approval of DNR Outdoor Recreation Grant Application, Resolution: 14-
0324-01 

 
The Project includes the following items: 

 The project will be to renovate the bathrooms and warming house at Rainbow 
Park.   

 The Project was submitted in 2012 for funding and did not receive funds that 
year.  

3



 
 

City Council Meeting Minutes 03-24-14     3 

 Staff would like to resubmit the application in an attempt to receive funding for 
the 2014 grant year.  

 Staff will be using and making some changes to the 2012 application. Up-to-
date estimates are needed for the project. Staff is working with Stantec to get 
new cost estimates.  

 In 2012, the estimated cost for the warming house/restroom upgrades was 
$73,800. 

 The grant covers 50% of the project and the City matches the remaining 
balance.  

 The project will include site accessibility upgrades to meet ADA requirements. 
A 2012 estimate for this type of work was around $16,800. 

 
Councilmember Eisinger moved to approved DNR Outdoor Grant 
Application: Resolution: 14-0324-101. Councilmembers Young and 
DeLuca to the Personnel Committee: Councilmember McCoy seconded. 
Motion passed 5-0. 

 
11. LEGISLATIVE /INTERGOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS 

 
There were no legislative / intergovernmental affairs to report on.  

 
12. COUNCIL REPORTS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
Councilmember McCoy reported on the NW Hennepin League of Municipalities. 
Met Council Representative Katie Rodriguez was present and has set up a 
meeting with staff to talk about the park and pool project and the Livable 
Communities Grant. In addition, McCoy provided an update on some of the 
current bills in legislation that may impact the residents of Maple Plain.  
 
Councilmember DeLuca reported that the Pioneer-Sarah Creek Watershed 
Management Commission is ready to release the Third Generation 
Comprehensive Plan. It is a 100 page document and there will be a comment 
period of 30 days. The plan will be implemented in 2015.  

 
13. CLOSED SESSION 

 
There was not a closed session.  

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

Councilmember Young moved to adjourn at 7:50 p.m.; Councilmember 
DeLuca seconded. Motion passed 5-0.  

 Prepared by Tessia,  
 
 
          City Administrator 

4



     City Council Workshop Minutes 03-24-14     1 

Maple Plain City Council Workshop 
 Meeting Minutes 
March 24, 2014 

Maple Plain City Hall 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

Mayor Hackbarth called the meeting to order at 5:37 p.m. 
Present: Councilmembers Dave Eisinger, Justin McCoy, Jerry Young and Mike 
DeLuca. Also present were Tessia Melvin, City Administrator, Norm Wenck, 
Wenck Associates,Inc. and Andy Berg, Abdo, Eick and Meyers LLP. 

 
2. ADOPT AGENDA 

 
Councilmember Eisinger moved to change the agenda in order to 
accommodate the guests first; Councilmember Young seconded. Motion 
passed 5-0.  
 

3. CITY HALL FEASIBILITY STUDY  
City Administrator Melvin provided the Council with an update on the process. At 
their March 10 workshop, the Council agreed to stop work with the engineering 
firm as they had reached a decision and staff would continue the project. The 
Council advised Melvin to contact Norm Wenck and discuss the project and 
future work. After this discussion, Wenck though advised not to complete the final 
report, sent final reports to the City Council and staff. Melvin asked for Council 
direction.  
 
Wenck presented the five highlights from the final study. First, a city hall that is 
3,200 square feet is sufficient for current and future needs of the City. Second, 
the Discovery Center proposal seems to be reasonable and will meet the City’s 
needs. Wenck suggested that the price be reduced, as the City will not use the 
common space all of the time. Third, a new stand-alone City Hall would be about 
$687,000. This pricing includes an additional option of connecting the City Hall to 
the Fire Station. Fourth, there are some additions and improvements that are 
needed for the Fire Department, which total about $514,000. Finally, the Public 
Works facility needs some improvements, which include a storage shed for salt 
at about $72,000 and other improvements that include siding and three doors.  
 
Councilmember Eisinger added that the Fire Department has been mending 
many of the Fire Station’s needs, which include roof and doors.  
 
After much discussion on the report, City Administrator Melvin asked the Council 
on their open about their satisfaction on the overall site assessment plan. There 
was consensus on the report being generic.   
 

 

5



     City Council Workshop Minutes 03-24-14     2 

4. STORM WATER UTILITY CHARGES UPDATE 
City Administrator Melvin provided a brief background on the item. The City 
updated its Storm Water Drainage Utility Ordinance in 20111. Since that time, the 
City has received two complaints on the utility billing for storm water drainage. At 
the March 10 workshop the City Council agreed that one of the properties should 
be rezoned as residential, since it is landlocked, connects with residential 
property is cannot be developed. The Council also agreed that the commercial 
property is properly zoned and pays a fair and reasonable fee. While they 
understand the property owner’s concerns about maintaining the storm water 
pond, the Council felt that this was part of the agreement with the Watershed 
District.  
 
Based on the current City Code, Melvin presented the calculations of the 
property from commercial to residential. Melvin explained that the residential fees 
were created for residential lots under one acre. Due to this consideration, the 
City Administrator and City Engineer agreed that while it is residential, the owner 
should pay per acre. 
 
The City Council asked the City Administrator and City Attorney to meet with the 
property owner and discuss the new charges, make them retroactive and 
hopefully form a compromise.  

 
 

5. NON-RESIDENTIAL WATER RATES UPDATE 
 
Melvin presented the Council with information on the non-residential water rates. 
The City currently charges Medina residents a 25% fee for water. In talking with 
their Councilmembers, they would like to see the City reduce or eliminate the fee. 
There was much discussion about the reasoning behind the fee and the 
possibility of reducing the fee to 15%. The Council asked Melvin to continue 
researching this subject and provide what additional cities are doing.  

 
6. 2013 AUDIT REPORT 

The 2013 Audit was conducted the first week of February and some items of 
interest were provided: 

 2014 Budget: Reduced Contingency Fund 

 How we repay our Bonds 

 Future Levy Limits 

 Long-term Financial Planning 

Staff recommends Council consider hiring Abdo, Eick & Meyers to provide 
services to prepare a 5-year financial planning tool, CIP and a rate study for the 
water and sewer funds.  

6



     City Council Workshop Minutes 03-24-14     3 

 
7. OTHER ISSUES 

 
 
 
Councilmember Eisinger moved to Adjourn; Councilmember Young 
seconded. Motion passed 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 6:57 p.m. 

 
 Prepared by 
 
 Tessia, City Administrator 

7



Payments

CITY OF MAPLE PLAIN 04/10/14 11:30 AM

Page 1

Current Period: April 2014

User Dollar Amt $0.00

$209,756.50Computer Dollar Amt

$209,756.50

Batch Name 04/15/14City

Payments

Out of Balance

AMERIPRIDE  Refer 18762

Cash Payment $47.18City Hall RugsE 101-41940-310 Janitorial Services

Invoice 1002740334

Cash Payment $53.21PW RugsE 601-49400-310 Janitorial Services

Invoice 1002740334

$100.39TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

ABDO EICK & MEYERS, LLP  Refer 18763

Cash Payment $4,800.002013 AuditE 101-41500-301 Auditing & Accounting S

Invoice 324948

$4,800.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

BAUERSCHMITT, STAN  Refer 18764

Cash Payment $150.00Janitor- City HallE 101-41940-310 Janitorial Services

Invoice

$150.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

BELAYHOST  Refer 18765

Cash Payment $32.00April Server- Email FilterE 101-41500-309 EDP, Software and Desi

Invoice 23682, 25305

$32.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

BUDGET PRINTING CENTER  Refer 18766

Cash Payment $220.57Envelopes with MP LogoE 101-41500-204 Envelopes & Letterhead

Invoice 4714

$220.57TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

CENTERPOINT ENERGY MINNEGA  Refer 18767

Cash Payment $776.88City HallE 101-41940-383 Gas Utilities

Invoice

Cash Payment $589.74Public WorksE 101-41940-383 Gas Utilities

Invoice

Cash Payment $10.17Lift StationE 602-49450-383 Gas Utilities

Invoice

$1,376.79TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

ECM PUBLISHERS INC  Refer 18768

Cash Payment $30.84Protolabs PHG 101-20218 Variance Escrow

Invoice

$30.84TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

ENGEL WATER TESTING, INC  Refer 18769

Cash Payment $75.00Water Sample Collections- Jan, Feb, MarE 601-49400-311 Contract Service

Invoice 14-12912

$75.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

ERICKSON, ROLF E.A.  Refer 18770

Cash Payment $1,200.96Assessing Services- MarchE 101-41550-305 Assessing Services

Invoice

$1,200.96TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

8



Payments

CITY OF MAPLE PLAIN 04/10/14 11:30 AM

Page 2

Current Period: April 2014

FINANCE & COMMERCE  Refer 18771

Cash Payment $126.27Budd Avenue ProjectE 101-41420-351 Legal Notices Publishing

Invoice 741487133

$126.27TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

FRONTIER  Refer 18772

Cash Payment $51.35Alarm Line WTPE 601-49400-321 Telephone

Invoice

Cash Payment $55.59WTPE 601-49400-321 Telephone

Invoice

$106.94TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

MAPLE PLAIN/INDEPENDENCE FIR  Refer 18773

Cash Payment $13,482.92March Fire ServicesE 101-42290-307 Fire Administration

Invoice

$13,482.92TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

G & K SERVICE  Refer 18774

Cash Payment $68.20PW Uniforms- MarchE 101-43000-417 Uniform Rentals

Invoice

$68.20TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

GOPHER STATE ONE-CALL, INC.  Refer 18775

Cash Payment $24.75Locates- MarchE 101-43000-437 Miscellaneous

Invoice 99440

$24.75TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

HAWKINS INC.  Refer 18776

Cash Payment $30.00Water ChemicalsE 601-49400-216 Chemicals & Chemical P

Invoice 3577671

$30.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

HENRYS WATERWORKS  Refer 18777

Cash Payment $941.73WTP maintenance and materialsE 601-49400-227 Utility Maintenance Supp

Invoice 17016

$941.73TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

MAAS, MARK PLUMBING  Refer 18778

Cash Payment $1,192.00WTP Contract ServicesE 601-49400-227 Utility Maintenance Supp

Invoice

$1,192.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

METROPOLITAN COUNCIL ENV SE  Refer 18779

Cash Payment $14,401.90Wastewater Services- MayE 602-49450-319 Other Consulting Service

Invoice 1031824

$14,401.90TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

MAPLE PLAIN FAMILY CENTE  Refer 18780

Cash Payment $12.13Pop- Maas RetirementE 101-41500-437 Miscellaneous

Invoice 44447

$12.13TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

TESSIA MELVIN  Refer 18781

Cash Payment $50.00Telephone Reimbursement- AprilE 101-41500-321 Telephone

Invoice

9



Payments

CITY OF MAPLE PLAIN 04/10/14 11:30 AM

Page 3

Current Period: April 2014

$50.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

MAMA  Refer 18782

Cash Payment $90.00McCallum and Melvin MembershipE 101-41500-433 Dues & Subscriptions

Invoice 1398, 1400

Cash Payment $20.00Melvin meetingE 101-41500-331 Training & Travel

Invoice 1454

$110.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

NELSON ELECTRIC MOTOR REPAI  Refer 18783

Cash Payment $220.00WTP MaintenanceE 601-49400-311 Contract Service

Invoice 6636

$220.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

NORTHERN SAFETY & IND  Refer 18784

Cash Payment $69.62MirrorsE 101-43000-400 Equipment Repair & Mai

Invoice

$69.62TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

STANDARD INSURANCE CO  Refer 18785

Cash Payment $25.44Extra LIG 101-21710 Extra Life Insurance

Invoice

Cash Payment $7.60LI PremiumG 101-21708 Life Insurance

Invoice

$33.04TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

ACME TOOLS  Refer 18786

Cash Payment $322.00Public WorksE 101-43000-240 Small Tools & Minor Equ

Invoice 2493207

$322.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

POSTMASTER  Refer 18787

Cash Payment $220.00First Class PresortE 101-41500-322 Postage

Invoice

$220.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

WEST HENNEPIN PUBLIC SAFETY  Refer 18788

Cash Payment $37,460.34April Police ServicesE 101-42110-306 Police Administration

Invoice

$37,460.34TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

XCEL ENERGY  Refer 18789

Cash Payment $49.23Park and PoolE 101-43160-381 Electric Utilities

Invoice

Cash Payment $2,153.29Street LightsE 101-43160-381 Electric Utilities

Invoice

Cash Payment $13.86Oak Street Street LightsE 101-43160-381 Electric Utilities

Invoice

Cash Payment $2,440.60WTPE 601-49400-381 Electric Utilities

Invoice

Cash Payment $23.35Main Street Street LightsE 101-43160-381 Electric Utilities

Invoice

$4,680.33TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

USA BLUEBOOK  Refer 18790

10



Payments

CITY OF MAPLE PLAIN 04/10/14 11:30 AM

Page 4

Current Period: April 2014

Cash Payment $120.80Overalls- PWE 101-43000-417 Uniform Rentals

Invoice 305315

$120.80TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

MFRA, INC.  Refer 18791

Cash Payment $64.00Staff MeetingsE 101-41910-302 Planning Services

Invoice 02524

Cash Payment $64.00Planning Commission MeetingsE 101-41330-302 Planning Services

Invoice 02524

Cash Payment $159.00City Council MeetingsE 101-41110-302 Planning Services

Invoice 02524

Cash Payment $405.00General Planning- Ben GozolaE 101-41910-302 Planning Services

Invoice 02524

Cash Payment $190.00General Planning- GozolaE 101-41910-302 Planning Services

Invoice 02524

$882.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

HENN COUNTY SHERIFF S DEPT  Refer 18792

Cash Payment $572.77Room & BoardE 101-42110-317 Board & Booking Fees

Invoice

$572.77TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

BOSSARDT CORPORATION  Refer 18793

Cash Payment $2,985.00Facility Needs StudyE 101-46500-319 Other Consulting Service

Invoice 20161

Cash Payment $2,656.25Facility Needs StudyE 101-46500-319 Other Consulting Service

Invoice 20161

$5,641.25TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

CARSON & CLELLAND  Refer 18794

Cash Payment $166.25Vehicle ForfeitureE 101-42110-304 Legal Services

Invoice

Cash Payment $933.33CriminalE 101-42110-304 Legal Services

Invoice

Cash Payment $1,119.60CriminalE 101-42110-304 Legal Services

Invoice

Cash Payment $2,566.67Investigation/ComplaintE 101-41610-304 Legal Services

Invoice

Cash Payment $770.00City CouncilE 101-41110-304 Legal Services

Invoice

Cash Payment $1,015.00Staff MeetingsE 101-41610-304 Legal Services

Invoice

Cash Payment $223.29CriminalE 101-42110-304 Legal Services

Invoice

Cash Payment $2,041.67General LegalE 101-41610-304 Legal Services

Invoice

$8,835.81TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

PITNEY BOWES  Refer 18795

Cash Payment $300.00PostageE 101-41500-322 Postage

Invoice

$300.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

11



Payments

CITY OF MAPLE PLAIN 04/10/14 11:30 AM

Page 5

Current Period: April 2014

ACZ LABORATORIES  Refer 18796

Cash Payment $184.00Water ChemicalsE 601-49400-216 Chemicals & Chemical P

Invoice 16983

$184.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

METRO WEST INSPECTION SERVI  Refer 18797

Cash Payment $4.50Building Permit InspectionE 101-42400-308 Building Inspection

Invoice

$4.50TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

BANYON  Refer 18798

Cash Payment $150.00Melvin, McCallum TrainingE 101-41500-331 Training & Travel

Invoice

$150.00TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

LEAGUE OF MN CITIES INS TRUST  Refer 18799

Cash Payment $1,924.56Admin Liability/E&OE 101-41500-361 General Liability Insuran

Invoice

Cash Payment $385.00BondsE 101-41500-361 General Liability Insuran

Invoice

Cash Payment $410.00Government Buildings PropertyE 101-41940-362 Property Insurance

Invoice

Cash Payment $1,121.00Public Works PropertyE 101-43000-362 Property Insurance

Invoice

Cash Payment $2,423.00Public Works Auto and EquipmentE 101-43000-363 Automotive Insurance

Invoice

Cash Payment $244.95Streets-liabilityE 101-43100-361 General Liability Insuran

Invoice

Cash Payment $5,972.00Parks- PropertyE 101-45200-362 Property Insurance

Invoice

Cash Payment $877.23Water LiabilityE 601-49400-361 General Liability Insuran

Invoice

Cash Payment $3,327.00Water PropertyE 601-49400-362 Property Insurance

Invoice

Cash Payment $668.00Water EquipE 601-49400-363 Automotive Insurance

Invoice

Cash Payment $2,530.00Sewer LiabilityE 602-49450-361 General Liability Insuran

Invoice

Cash Payment $60.00Sewer PropertyE 602-49450-362 Property Insurance

Invoice

$19,942.74TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

NUSS TRUCK & EQUIPMENT  Refer 18800

Cash Payment $91,280.30Plow TruckE 501-43000-540 Heavy Machinery

Invoice 6224

$91,280.30TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

STA-SAFE LOCKSMITHS  Refer 18801

Cash Payment $303.61Lock Change- CHE 101-41940-401 Building Repair & Mainte

Invoice 19827, 19830

$303.61TotalTransaction Date 4/10/2014 Bank of Maple Plain 10100

12



Payments

CITY OF MAPLE PLAIN 04/10/14 11:30 AM

Page 6

Current Period: April 2014

Pre-Written Checks $0.00
Checks to be Generated by the Computer $209,756.50

Total $209,756.50

Fund Summary
10100  Bank of Maple Plain

101 GENERAL FUND $91,358.42

501 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND $91,280.30

601 WATER FUND $10,115.71

602 SEWER FUND $17,002.07

$209,756.50

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Information Memorandum 

April 14, 2014 Maple Plain City Council 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
D. OPENTO BUSINESS CONTRACT 

 
ACTION TO BE CONSIDERED 
 
To approve the Open to Business contract between the cities of Maple Plain, Medina and 
Hennepin  County HRA and Metropolitan Consortium of Community Developers. 
 
FACTS 
 

 The cities of Maple Plain approved continuing the Open to Business program, a free 
service to businesses – existing and new – in both communities. 

 The program offers various services for businesses from marketing expertise to possibly 
providing access to nominal low-interest loans. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attached on page(s) ____ through ____ is the agreement. 
 
 
 
.   
 

20



 1

  Contract for Services 
Between the Cities of Medina and Maple Plain 

&  
Metropolitan Consortium of Community Developers 

for the 
 Open to Business Program 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, is made and entered into as of the _____ day of April, 2014, between the 
Cities of Medina and Maple Plain, (herein called “MMP”) and Metropolitan Consortium of 
Community Developers, (herein called “MCCD”); and, 
 
WHEREAS,  the City of Medina and the City of Maple Plain wish to retain an entity with the 
capacity to provide small business technical assistance to existing businesses and those parties 
interested in opening a business in Medina and Maple Plain; and have elected to jointly promote 
and market such a program (the “Initiative”); and, 
 
 
WHEREAS, MCCD has represented itself as competent to provide the services required to 
administer and carry out the Initiative; and, 
 
WHEREAS, MMP wishes to engage MCCD to provide said services necessary to carry out the 
Initiative; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, it is agreed between the parties hereto that; 
 
1. TIME OF PERFORMANCE 
 The service to be provided by MCCD shall commence upon execution of this Agreement 

and shall terminate as of March 31, 2015.  All services, documents, and information to be 
furnished or performed by MCCD in order to carry out the Initiative shall be furnished or 
performed as promptly as possible, and with the fullest due diligence. 

 
2. COMPENSATION 

Total compensation to MCCD shall be $2,500 for a one year period (the Contract 
Amount) to manage the Medina and Maple Plain Open to Business program.  The 
Contract Amount will be paid as follows: $625 due and payable by the City of Maple 
Plain, $625 due and payable by the City of Medina, and $1,250 invoiced and dated on or 
about 6 months from the agreement date, payable by Hennepin County Housing and 
Redevelopment Authority. 
 
In the event of a failure of the City of Maple Plain, City of Medina, or Hennepin County 
Housing and Redevelopment Authority to provide the compensation required herein, 
MCCD may cease the provision of services after giving notice to all parties.  In such 
event, MCCD shall return to each party a portion of the compensation received prorated 

21



 2

for the remainder of the term of the contract.  MMP has no obligation to pay the 
installment payable by Hennepin County Housing and Redevelopment Authority. 
 

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
MCCD will use the Contract Amount to provide technical assistance to existing Medina 
and Maple Plain businesses, residents, parties interested in starting a business in Medina 
and Maple Plain and members of the West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce; (See 
Exhibit A Scope of Services-Medina and Maple Plain Open to Business Program). 

 
4. REPORTING 

MCCD agrees to submit quarterly reports related to its operation of the Medina and 
Maple Plain Open to Business program.  Items to be reported on include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 
 
 Number of inquiries 
 
 Hours of technical assistance provided 
 
 Type of assistance provided 

 
 Type of business 

 
 Annual sales revenue 

 
 Number of businesses opened 

 
 Number of business expanded/stabilized 

 
 Number and amounts of financing packages  

 
 Demographic information on entrepreneurs 

 
The required reporting schedule is as follows: 
 
2nd quarter April – June, report due July 31st 
3rd quarter July – September, report due October 31st  
4th quarter October – December, report due January 31st of 2015 
1st quarter January – March, report due April 30th of 2015 
MCCD will provide additional reports as requested by the MMP. 

 
5. PERSONNEL 

MCCD represents that it has, or will secure, at its own expense, all personnel required in 
performing the services to carry out the Initiative.  Such personnel shall not be employees 
of or have any contractual relationship with MMP.  No tenure or any other rights or 
benefits, including worker’s compensation, unemployment insurance, medical care, sick 
leave, vacation pay, severance pay, or any other benefits available to MMP employees 

22



 3

shall accrue to MCCD or employees of MCCD performing services under this agreement.  
The MCCD is an independent contractor. 
 
All of the services required to carry out the Initiative will be performed by MCCD, and 
all personnel engaged in the work shall be fully qualified and shall be authorized or 
permitted under State and local law to perform such work. 

 
6. INTEREST OF MEMBERS OF THE CITY, EDA AND OTHERS 
 No officer, member, or employee of MMP, and no member of its governing body, and no 

other public official or governing body of the locality in which the Initiative is situated or 
being carried out, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or 
approval of the undertaking or carrying out of the Initiative, shall participate in the 
decision relating to this Agreement which affects his/her personal interest or the interest 
of any corporation, partnership, or association in which he/she is, directly or indirectly, 
interested or has any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement 
or proceeds thereof. 

 
7. ASSIGNABILTY 
 MCCD shall not assign any interest in this Agreement, and shall not transfer any interest 

in the same without the prior written approval of MMP thereto. 
 
8. COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL LAWS 
 MCCD agrees to comply with all federal and state laws, statutes and applicable 

regulations and the ordinances of the MMP. 
 
9. COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAW 
 

a.  MCCD is aware of the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 471.425 sub. 4c (payment to 
subcontractors) and agrees to be bound by the provision of that subsection. 
b. MCCD is aware of the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 13.05, subds. 6 and 11 (Data 
Practices) and agrees to be bound by the provisions of those subsections.  Specifically if 
MCCD obtains any data from the MMP, it agrees to maintain all data obtained from those 
entities consistent with the requirements of the Minnesota Data Practices Act, Minnesota 
Statutes 13.02 et seq. (the “Act”). 

 
10. INSURANCE 
 MCCD agrees to provide proof of workers’ compensation and comprehensive general 

liability insurance. Comprehensive general liability insurance shall be in the minimum 
amount of $1,500,000 

 
11. HOLD HARMLESS 
 MCCD agrees to defend, protect, indemnify and hold harmless MMP, their agents, 

officers and employees harmless from and against all liabilities, losses, damages, costs, 
and expenses, whether personal, property, or contractual, including reasonable attorney’s 
fees, arising out of, or related to the administration and operation of the Initiative, and 

23



 4

from any act of negligence of MCCD, its officers, employees, servants, agents, or 
contractors. 

 
 MMP agrees to defend, protect, indemnify and hold harmless the MCCD, its agents, 

officers and employees harmless from and against all liabilities, losses, damages, costs, 
and expenses, whether personal, property, or contractual, including reasonable attorney’s 
fees, arising out of, or related to any act of negligence of MMP, their officers, employees, 
servants, agents, or contractors. 

 
12. NOTICES 
 A notice, demand, or other communication under the Agreement by either party to the 

other shall be sufficiently given or delivered if it is dispatched by mail, postage prepaid, 
return receipt requested, or delivered personally; and 

 
(a) In the case of MCCD, is addressed or delivered personally to: 

 
David Chapman, Director of Lending and Operations 
Metropolitan Consortium of Community Developers 
3137 Chicago Avenue South 
Minneapolis, MN 55407 

 
(b) In the case of the MMP: 
 

Scott Johnson 
City Administrator 
City of Medina 
2052 County Road 24 
Medina, MN 55340 
 
Tessia Melvin 
City Administrator 
City of Maple Plain 
1620 Maple Avenue  
P.O. Box 97  
Maple Plain, MN 55359 
 

or at such other address with respect to any party as that party may designate in writing 
and forward to the other as provide in the Section. 

 
13. MODIFICATION 
 This Agreement may not be modified, changed, or amended in any manner whatsoever 

without the prior written approval of all the parties hereto. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the day 
and year first written above. 
 

24



 5

 
 
CITY OF MEDINA METROPOLITAN CONSORTIUM 
       OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPERS 
 
 
By:       By:       
 _______________, Its __________    , Its Executive Director 
By:       
 Scott T. Johnson, Its City Administrator-Clerk 
 
 
CITY OF MAPLE PLAIN 
 
By _________________________________ 
 Roger Hackbarth, Its Mayor 
 
By _________________________________ 
 Tessia Melvin, Its City Administrator-Clerk     

25



 6

Exhibit A 
Scope of Services 

 
 

 
 
Open for Business Technical Assistance Services 
MCCD will provide intensive one-on-one technical assistance to Medina and Maple Plain 
businesses, Medina and Maple Plain residents and aspiring entrepreneurs intending to establish, 
purchase, or improve a business in Medina and Maple Plain, and members of the West Hennepin 
Chamber of Commerce.  Technical assistance includes, but is not limited to, the following: 
 
 Business plan development 
 
 Feasibility analysis 

 
 Marketing 

 
 Cashflow and other financial projection development 

 
 Operational analysis 

 
 City and State licensing and regulatory assistance 

 
 Loan packaging, and other assistance in obtaining financing 

 
 Help in obtaining competent legal advice 

 
MCCD will also provide technical assistance on a walk-in basis monthly in Medina and Maple 
Plain City Hall or as requested at a place of business within Medina and Maple Plain.   
 
 
Open for Business Access to Capital 
Access to capital will be provided to qualifying businesses through MCCD’s Emerging Small 
Business Loan Program (see Exhibit B Small Business Loan Program Guidelines below).  
MCCD also provides its financing in partnership other community lenders, banks or both. 
 

26



 7

EXHIBIT B 
 

Small Business Loan Program Guidelines  
 

Loan Amounts: 

 Up to $25,000 for start-up businesses 
 Larger financing packages for established businesses 
 Designed to leverage other financing programs as well as private financing provided by 

the commercial banking community. 

Eligible Projects: 

 Borrowers must be a “for-profit” business. 
 Business must be complimentary to existing business community. 
 Borrowers must have equity injection as determined by fund management. 

Allowable Use of Proceeds: 

 Loan proceeds can be used for working capital, inventory, building and equipment and 
general business operations.  

 Interest Rates: 

 Loan interest rate is dependent on use, term and other factors, not to exceed 10%. 

Loan Term Length: 

 Loan repayment terms will generally range from three to five years, but may be 
substantially longer for major asset financing such as commercial property. 

Fees and Charges: 

 Borrowers are responsible for paying all customary legal and other loan closing costs. 

 

27



 
 
 

Agenda Information Memorandum 
April 14, 2014 - Maple Plain City Council 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

A. APPROVAL AND AUTHORIZATION OF BIDS FOR MAIN STREET WEST AND RAINBOW 
AVENUE UTILITY AND STREET IMPROVEMENTS 

 
 
ACTION TO BE CONSIDERED 
 
Motion to proceed with the Adjusted Total Base Bid of $2,812,476.61 which includes Alternate 
No. 1 (Pave the Rainbow Park Parking Lot).    
 
Approve Resolution No. 14-0411-01, awarding the Main Street West and Rainbow Avenue 
Utility and Street Improvements to LaTour Construction, Inc.  
 
FACTS 
 

 The City Council authorized preparation of a feasibility report to study the improvements 
in this area due to the age of the utilities, street conditions, and storm sewer drainage. 

 A Neighborhood Workshop and Site Walk Through were held on August 28, 2013. 
 The feasibility report was prepared and reviewed by the Council on September 23, 2013 

and received on October 15, 2013.   
 The Council held the public hearing on October 15, 2013 and continued the public 

hearing on October 28, 2013 Council Meeting.  
 The Council approved a resolution on December 9, 2013 authorizing the City Engineer to 

prepare plans and specifications. 
 A public information meeting was held on Thursday, January 23, 2014 to receive public 

comments on the engineering recommendations and current project design. 
 The Council approved proceeding with an urban section on Main Street West as well as 

the other proposed storm sewer design at their January 27, 2014 Council Meeting.   
 The Council directed the City Engineer to include the rebid of Halgren Road Watermain – 

Phase 2 Improvements with this project. 
 The Council directed the City Engineer to include paving of the Rainbow Park Parking Lot 

as an alternate bid with this project. 
 The Council approved proceeding with an urban section on February 24, 2014. 
 The Council approved Resolution No. 14-0224-01 that approved the plans and 

specifications and set the bid opening for Tuesday, March 25, 2014. 

28



 Four bids were received on the project, and the low bidder is LaTour Construction, Inc. of 
Maple Lake with a total base bid of $2,780,243.61 and an alternate no. 1 (Pave Rainbow 
Park Parking Lot) in the amount of $32,233.00. 

 LaTour Construction was the contractor who did the recent work on Oak and Boundary. 
 The low bid was around $474,000 less than the engineer’s estimate of $3,254,000 and 

around $123,000 less than the next lowest bidder. 
 Due to the good pricing on paving the Rainbow Park Parking Lot, staff recommends the 

Council proceed with awarding the project to LaTour Construction, Inc. for the Adjusted 
Total Base Bid Amount of $2,812,476.61 which includes Alternate No. 1. 

 City Staff has been coordinating easement meetings with affected property owners.  For 
those easements that are not related to improving backyard drainage issues, City Staff 
anticipates final easement negotiations will involve some amount of payment for the 
easements. Staff will update the Council further on those negotiations once they are 
completed. 

 CenterPoint Energy will relocate their gas line along the north ROW line of Main Street 
West and the west ROW line of Rainbow Avenue due to new public utilities and 
adjustment in street elevation.  They plan to begin their relocation work in late April, 
taking a month to relocate the gas main and a month to reconnect gas service lines.  

 A preconstruction meeting will be set up with the contractor if the project is awarded. 
 A neighborhood meeting will be set up following the preconstruction meeting to update 

the residents on the project schedule.   
 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attached on page(s) ____through ____ is the Bid Results Letter, Bid Tabulation, and Resolution 
No. 14-0411-01. 

29



Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
2335 Highway 36 West 
St. Paul MN  55113 
Tel:  (651) 636-4600 
Fax: (651) 636-1311 

 

   
 

March 28, 2014 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Maple Plain 
1620 Maple St. 
P. O. Box 97 
Maple Plain, MN 55359 
 
Re: Main Street West and Rainbow Avenue 
 Utility and Street Improvements 

Project No. 193802390 
Bid Results 

 
Dear Honorable Mayor and City Council: 
 
Bids were opened for the Project stated above on March 25, 2014.  Transmitted herewith is a copy 
of the Bid Tabulation for your information and file.  Copies will also be distributed to each Bidder 
once the Project has been awarded.  
 
There were a total of 4 Bids.  The following summarizes the results of the Bids received: 
 
 

Contractor Total Base Bid 
Alternate No. 1-Pave 
Rainbow Park Parking Lot 

Low LaTour Construction, Inc. $2,780,243.61 $32,233.00 
#2 Widmer Construction, LLC $2,903,094.65 $32,863.50 
#3 Northdale Construction Co., Inc. $3,043,941.33 $35,629.00 
#4 Burschville Construction, Inc. $3,507,289.00 $36,210.00 

 
The low Bidder on the Project was LaTour Construction, Inc. with a Total Base Bid Amount of 
$2,780,243.61 and Alternate No. 1 Bid of $32,233.00. This compares to the Engineer’s Opinion of 
Probable Costs of $3,254,000 and Alternate No. 1 of $31,800. These Bids have been reviewed and 
found to be in order. 
 
If the City Council wishes to award the Project to the low Bidder, then LaTour Construction, Inc. 
should be awarded the Project on the Total Base Bid Amount of $2,780,243.61. If the Council 
wishes to include Alternate No. 1 in the award, then LaTour Construction, Inc. should be awarded 
the Project on the Adjusted Total Base Bid Amount of $2,812,476.61. 
 
Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (651) 604-4829. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 

 
Dan D. Boyum, PE 
 
Enclosure 

30



Project Name:

EDA Project No.: Project No.:

Bid Opening: Owner:

License No. 23451

BID TABULATION

Item 
Num Item Units Qty Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

PART A:  MAIN STREET WEST IMPROVEMENTS
PART A.1:  MAIN STREET WEST SANITARY SEWER

1 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $39,000.00 $39,000.00 $30,585.00 $30,585.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00
2 REMOVE SANITARY SEWER PIPE LF 2750 $2.15 $5,912.50 $3.00 $8,250.00 1.25 $3,437.50 $5.00 $13,750.00
3 REMOVE SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE EA 9 $410.00 $3,690.00 $200.00 $1,800.00 $445.00 $4,005.00 $500.00 $4,500.00
4 REMOVE SANITARY SEWER SERVICE PIPE LF 1900 $0.01 $19.00 $3.00 $5,700.00 $1.50 $2,850.00 $5.00 $9,500.00
5 BYPASS PUMPING LS 1 $12,260.00 $12,260.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $25,000.00 $25,000.00
6 IMPROVED PIPE FOUNDATION LF 1400 $5.00 $7,000.00 $10.75 $15,050.00 $2.15 $3,010.00 $2.00 $2,800.00
7 CONNECT TO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER PIPE EA 5 $1,300.00 $6,500.00 $1,500.00 $7,500.00 $950.00 $4,750.00 $1,750.00 $8,750.00
8 CONNECT TO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE EA 1 $2,830.00 $2,830.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,150.00 $1,150.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
9 4' DIAMETER SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE EA 9 $2,150.00 $19,350.00 $1,313.00 $11,817.00 $1,975.84 $17,782.56 $2,250.00 $20,250.00
10 4' DIAMETER SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE OVERDEPTH LF 30 $85.00 $2,550.00 $74.00 $2,220.00 $116.21 $3,486.30 $100.00 $3,000.00
11 8" PVC SANITARY SEWER, SDR-35 LF 2800 $33.00 $92,400.00 $31.50 $88,200.00 $33.63 $94,164.00 $73.00 $204,400.00
12 8" PLUG EA 1 $91.00 $91.00 $43.00 $43.00 $40.43 $40.43 $100.00 $100.00
13 4" X 8" PVC WYE EA 60 $291.00 $17,460.00 $72.00 $4,320.00 $105.20 $6,312.00 $150.00 $9,000.00
14 4" PVC SANITARY SEWER SERVICE, SCH 40 LF 2000 $22.35 $44,700.00 $28.00 $56,000.00 $18.42 $36,840.00 $20.00 $40,000.00
15 RECONNECT SANITARY SEWER SERVICE EA 55 $271.00 $14,905.00 $55.00 $3,025.00 $95.10 $5,230.50 $400.00 $22,000.00
16 ABANDON SANITARY SEWER SERVICE EA 13 $91.00 $1,183.00 $500.00 $6,500.00 $250.00 $3,250.00 $600.00 $7,800.00
17 TELEVISE SANITARY SEWER LF 2800 $0.60 $1,680.00 $1.15 $3,220.00 $1.18 $3,304.00 $2.00 $5,600.00

TOTAL PART A.1 - MAIN STREET WEST SANITARY SEWER $271,530.50 $253,230.00 $252,112.29 $428,950.00

PART A.2 - MAIN STREET W WATERMAIN
18 REMOVE WATERMAIN PIPE LF 1800 $2.85 $5,130.00 $5.00 $9,000.00 $4.85 $8,730.00 $8.00 $14,400.00
19 ABANDON WATERMAIN PIPE LF 1170 $4.00 $4,680.00 $5.00 $5,850.00 $4.50 $5,265.00 $10.00 $11,700.00
20 REMOVE HYDRANT EA 6 $355.00 $2,130.00 $150.00 $900.00 $275.00 $1,650.00 $750.00 $4,500.00
21 REMOVE GATE VALVE EA 9 $210.00 $1,890.00 $100.00 $900.00 $235.00 $2,115.00 $500.00 $4,500.00
22 REMOVE WATER SERVICE PIPE LF 1800 $0.01 $18.00 $3.00 $5,400.00 $1.50 $2,700.00 $8.00 $14,400.00
23 TEMPORARY WATERMAIN LS 1 $12,635.00 $12,635.00 $18,000.00 $18,000.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00
24 IMPROVED PIPE FOUNDATION LF 1500 $4.00 $6,000.00 $10.75 $16,125.00 $1.35 $2,025.00 $2.00 $3,000.00
25 1" CORPORATION STOP EA 60 $144.00 $8,640.00 $97.00 $5,820.00 $103.69 $6,221.40 $150.00 $9,000.00
26 1" CURB STOP AND BOX EA 60 $288.00 $17,280.00 $185.00 $11,100.00 $225.51 $13,530.60 $150.00 $9,000.00
27 SERVICE SADDLE EA 60 $135.00 $8,100.00 $97.00 $5,820.00 $76.17 $4,570.20 $100.00 $6,000.00
28 1" TYPE K COPPER WATER SERVICE LF 2320 $20.35 $47,212.00 $30.75 $71,340.00 $20.64 $47,884.80 $20.00 $46,400.00
29 RECONNECT TO EXISTING WATER SERVICE EA 54 $170.00 $9,180.00 $103.00 $5,562.00 $103.06 $5,565.24 $400.00 $21,600.00
30 6" GATE VALVE AND BOX EA 10 $1,415.00 $14,150.00 $1,265.00 $12,650.00 $1,260.46 $12,604.60 $1,350.00 $13,500.00
31 8" GATE VALVE AND BOX EA 9 $1,875.00 $16,875.00 $1,676.00 $15,084.00 $1,637.10 $14,733.90 $1,850.00 $16,650.00
32 12" GATE VALVE AND BOX EA 1 $3,175.00 $3,175.00 $2,790.00 $2,790.00 $2,917.90 $2,917.90 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
33 6" PVC WATERMAIN, C900 LF 400 $24.00 $9,600.00 $30.25 $12,100.00 $26.25 $10,500.00 $30.00 $12,000.00

I hereby certify that this is an exact
reproduction of bids received.

Bidder No. 2

Northdale Construction Co., Inc.

MAIN STREET WEST AND RAINBOW AVENUE UTILITY AND STREET IMPROVEMENTS

City of Maple Plain, MinnesotaTuesday, March 25, 2014, at 10 A.M., CDT

193802390

Bidder No. 3Bidder No. 1

LaTour Construction, Inc. Widmer Construction, LLC

Dan D. Boyum, PE

Bidder No. 4

Burschville Construciton, Inc.

193802390BT.xlsm BT-131



BID TABULATION

Item 
Num Item Units Qty Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

Bidder No. 2

Northdale Construction Co., Inc.

Bidder No. 3Bidder No. 1

LaTour Construction, Inc. Widmer Construction, LLC

Bidder No. 4

Burschville Construciton, Inc.

34 8" PVC WATERMAIN, C900 LF 2850 $28.50 $81,225.00 $34.00 $96,900.00 $23.28 $66,348.00 $34.00 $96,900.00
35 12" PVC WATERMAIN, C900 LF 20 $47.00 $940.00 $43.00 $860.00 $51.55 $1,031.00 $45.00 $900.00
36 6" PLUG EA 6 $139.00 $834.00 $110.00 $660.00 $105.90 $635.40 $160.00 $960.00
37 6" X 8" TEE EA 16 $513.00 $8,208.00 $397.00 $6,352.00 $466.70 $7,467.20 $525.00 $8,400.00
38 8" X 8" TEE EA 4 $600.00 $2,400.00 $467.00 $1,868.00 $527.68 $2,110.72 $575.00 $2,300.00
39 6" X 8" REDUCER EA 3 $282.00 $846.00 $217.00 $651.00 $183.06 $549.18 $325.00 $975.00
40 8" x 12" REDUCER EA 1 $475.00 $475.00 $335.00 $335.00 $446.31 $446.31 $425.00 $425.00
41 8" 45 DEGREE BEND EA 2 $350.00 $700.00 $273.25 $546.50 $311.10 $622.20 $350.00 $700.00
42 HYDRANT EA 9 $4,000.00 $36,000.00 $3,020.00 $27,180.00 $3,417.07 $30,753.63 $3,400.00 $30,600.00
43 WATERMAIN OFFSET EA 5 $1,300.00 $6,500.00 $4,250.00 $21,250.00 $2,538.12 $12,690.60 $2,500.00 $12,500.00
44 ABANDON WATER SERVICE EA 7 $0.01 $0.07 $500.00 $3,500.00 $245.00 $1,715.00 $600.00 $4,200.00
45 CONNECT TO EXISTING WATERMAIN EA 5 $1,530.00 $7,650.00 $1,630.00 $8,150.00 $1,061.61 $5,308.05 $1,000.00 $5,000.00
46 4" INSULATION SY 50 $54.00 $2,700.00 $36.00 $1,800.00 $34.42 $1,721.00 $50.00 $2,500.00

TOTAL PART A.2 - MAIN STREET WEST WATERMAIN $315,173.07 $368,493.50 $278,911.93 $386,010.00

PART A.3 - MAIN STREET W STORM SEWER
47 REMOVE STORM SEWER PIPE LF 2850 $7.50 $21,375.00 $8.00 $22,800.00 $6.85 $19,522.50 $10.00 $28,500.00
48 REMOVE STORM SEWER STRUCTURE EA 7 $325.00 $2,275.00 $150.00 $1,050.00 $435.00 $3,045.00 $400.00 $2,800.00
49 2' X 3' CATCH BASIN EA 7 $1,540.00 $10,780.00 $958.00 $6,706.00 $1,333.00 $9,331.00 $1,550.00 $10,850.00
50 27" DIAMETER CATCH BASIN EA 8 $1,285.00 $10,280.00 $727.00 $5,816.00 $950.00 $7,600.00 $1,350.00 $10,800.00
51 48" DIAMETER CATCH BASIN MANHOLE EA 12 $1,950.00 $23,400.00 $1,212.00 $14,544.00 $1,595.00 $19,140.00 $2,200.00 $26,400.00
52 60" DIAMETER CATCH BASIN MANHOLE EA 3 $2,775.00 $8,325.00 $1,913.00 $5,739.00 $1,945.00 $5,835.00 $2,900.00 $8,700.00
53 72" DIAMETER CATCH BASIN MANHOLE EA 2 $3,460.00 $6,920.00 $2,340.00 $4,680.00 $3,185.00 $6,370.00 $3,550.00 $7,100.00
54 84" DIAMETER CATCH BASIN MANHOLE EA 1 $6,700.00 $6,700.00 $5,258.00 $5,258.00 $7,795.00 $7,795.00 $6,700.00 $6,700.00
55 48" DIAMETER STORM MANHOLE EA 2 $2,075.00 $4,150.00 $1,212.00 $2,424.00 $1,485.00 $2,970.00 $2,000.00 $4,000.00
56 60" DIAMETER STORM MANHOLE EA 2 $3,000.00 $6,000.00 $1,913.00 $3,826.00 $1,845.00 $3,690.00 $2,900.00 $5,800.00
57 12" RCP STORM SEWER PIPE LF 1050 $27.25 $28,612.50 $37.50 $39,375.00 $34.17 $35,878.50 $28.00 $29,400.00
58 15" RCP STORM SEWER PIPE LF 715 $29.75 $21,271.25 $38.50 $27,527.50 $35.32 $25,253.80 $30.00 $21,450.00
59 24" RCP STORM SEWER PIPE, CL. 3 LF 490 $41.50 $20,335.00 $44.75 $21,927.50 $42.68 $20,913.20 $38.00 $18,620.00
60 36" RCP STORM SEWER PIPE, CL. 3 LF 765 $69.00 $52,785.00 $70.00 $53,550.00 $71.13 $54,414.45 $71.00 $54,315.00
61 12" FLARED END SECTION EA 4 $675.00 $2,700.00 $1,186.00 $4,744.00 $795.76 $3,183.04 $700.00 $2,800.00
62 CONNECT TO EXISTING STORM SEWER PIPE EA 1 $875.00 $875.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $950.00 $950.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

TOTAL PART A.3 - MAIN STREET WEST STORM SEWER $226,783.75 $227,967.00 $225,891.49 $240,235.00

PART A.4 - MAIN STREET W STREET
63 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $3,630.00 $3,630.00 $50,100.00 $50,100.00 $65,000.00 $65,000.00
64 CLEARING AND GRUBBING LS 1 $3,150.00 $3,150.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $3,225.00 $3,225.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00
65 REMOVE TREE EA 15 $525.00 $7,875.00 $460.00 $6,900.00 $430.00 $6,450.00 $525.00 $7,875.00
66 REMOVE SHRUB EA 20 $52.00 $1,040.00 $55.00 $1,100.00 $53.75 $1,075.00 $50.00 $1,000.00
67 REMOVE STUMP EA 1 $160.00 $160.00 $220.00 $220.00 $215.00 $215.00 $550.00 $550.00
68 REMOVE CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER LF 200 $4.60 $920.00 $8.25 $1,650.00 $3.50 $700.00 $5.00 $1,000.00
69 REMOVE BITUMINOUS DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT SY 1730 $3.00 $5,190.00 $3.30 $5,709.00 $3.85 $6,660.50 $3.00 $5,190.00
70 REMOVE CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT SY 100 $6.10 $610.00 $9.35 $935.00 $7.00 $700.00 $5.50 $550.00
71 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SY 8200 $4.15 $34,030.00 $4.40 $36,080.00 $2.65 $21,730.00 $3.00 $24,600.00
72 REMOVE DRAIN TILE LF 1350 $1.05 $1,417.50 $5.00 $6,750.00 $2.00 $2,700.00 $1.25 $1,687.50

193802390BT.xlsm BT-232



BID TABULATION

Item 
Num Item Units Qty Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

Bidder No. 2

Northdale Construction Co., Inc.

Bidder No. 3Bidder No. 1

LaTour Construction, Inc. Widmer Construction, LLC

Bidder No. 4

Burschville Construciton, Inc.

73 REMOVE RETAINING WALL LF 250 $12.75 $3,187.50 $3.50 $875.00 $10.50 $2,625.00 $25.00 $6,250.00
74 REMOVE BOLLARD EA 4 $116.00 $464.00 $50.00 $200.00 $50.00 $200.00 $150.00 $600.00
75 SAWING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT LF 910 $3.15 $2,866.50 $2.75 $2,502.50 $3.85 $3,503.50 $3.50 $3,185.00
76 SAWING CONCRETE PAVEMENT LF 40 $4.15 $166.00 $6.05 $242.00 $6.50 $260.00 $6.00 $240.00
77 REMOVE SIGN EA 16 $26.15 $418.40 $27.50 $440.00 $26.88 $430.08 $50.00 $800.00
78 TEMPORARY MAILBOXES LS 1 $3,800.00 $3,800.00 $3,960.00 $3,960.00 $3,870.00 $3,870.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00
79 SALVAGE AND REINSTALL FENCE LF 50 $7.65 $382.50 $25.00 $1,250.00 $20.00 $1,000.00 $20.00 $1,000.00
80 SALVAGE AND REINSTALL YARD LIGHT EA 2 $515.00 $1,030.00 $750.00 $1,500.00 $375.00 $750.00 $750.00 $1,500.00
81 SALVAGE AND REINSTALL TREE EA 4 $235.00 $940.00 $236.50 $946.00 $241.88 $967.52 $250.00 $1,000.00
82 COMMON EXCAVATION (EV) CY 10500 $11.65 $122,325.00 $12.76 $133,980.00 $19.75 $207,375.00 $17.00 $178,500.00
83 SUBGRADE EXCAVATION (EV) CY 1000 $13.45 $13,450.00 $18.43 $18,430.00 $19.75 $19,750.00 $15.50 $15,500.00
84 COMMON EXCAVATION (EV) - SPECIAL 1 CY 200 $17.45 $3,490.00 $15.00 $3,000.00 $23.50 $4,700.00 $19.00 $3,800.00
85 TOPSOIL BORROW (LV) CY 3100 $16.35 $50,685.00 $22.00 $68,200.00 $23.16 $71,796.00 $15.00 $46,500.00
86 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC TYPE V SY 10200 $2.20 $22,440.00 $1.85 $18,870.00 $1.55 $15,810.00 $2.10 $21,420.00
87 SELECT GRANULAR BORROW - STREETS CY 3500 $21.15 $74,025.00 $22.00 $77,000.00 $29.30 $102,550.00 $20.00 $70,000.00
88 SELECT GRANULAR BORROW MODIFIED - FILTRATION 

BASIN
CY 60 $42.50 $2,550.00 $40.00 $2,400.00 $33.50 $2,010.00 $36.00 $2,160.00

89 PLANTING SOIL - FILTRATION BASIN CY 50 $39.50 $1,975.00 $43.00 $2,150.00 $41.24 $2,062.00 $62.00 $3,100.00
90 MULCH, TYPE 6 - FILTRATION BASIN CY 12 $65.00 $780.00 $69.00 $828.00 $67.55 $810.60 $65.00 $780.00
91 LAWN EDGING - FILTRATION BASIN LF 400 $2.65 $1,060.00 $2.81 $1,124.00 $2.74 $1,096.00 $3.00 $1,200.00
92 AGGREGATE BASE CLASS 5, 100% CRUSHED TON 5350 $13.55 $72,492.50 $13.65 $73,027.50 $20.75 $111,012.50 $18.00 $96,300.00
93 AGGREGATE MATERIAL FOR ACCESS CY 1000 $10.00 $10,000.00 $21.00 $21,000.00 $9.50 $9,500.00 $32.00 $32,000.00
94 ADJUST MANHOLE CASTING EA 12 $300.00 $3,600.00 $693.00 $8,316.00 $325.00 $3,900.00 $600.00 $7,200.00
95 ADJUST VALVE BOX EA 11 $180.00 $1,980.00 $367.50 $4,042.50 $270.00 $2,970.00 $400.00 $4,400.00
96 EXTERNAL SEAL SYSTEM EA 9 $240.00 $2,160.00 $157.50 $1,417.50 $214.75 $1,932.75 $250.00 $2,250.00
97 BITUMINOUS MATERIAL FOR TACK COAT GAL 440 $3.40 $1,496.00 $3.41 $1,500.40 $3.49 $1,535.60 $3.25 $1,430.00
98 TYPE SP 12.5 WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (2,B) TON 800 $66.00 $52,800.00 $66.42 $53,136.00 $68.21 $54,568.00 $70.00 $56,000.00
99 TYPE SP 12.5 NON WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (2,B) TON 1000 $64.25 $64,250.00 $64.79 $64,790.00 $66.33 $66,330.00 $67.00 $67,000.00
100 PATCH HALGREN ROAD SY 470 $84.00 $39,480.00 $60.11 $28,251.70 $77.08 $36,227.60 $38.00 $17,860.00
101 BITUMINOUS DRIVEWAY PATCH SY 1730 $22.35 $38,665.50 $19.32 $33,423.60 $19.78 $34,219.40 $22.00 $38,060.00
102 CONCRETE DRIVEWAY APRON SY 600 $43.75 $26,250.00 $42.08 $25,248.00 $43.54 $26,124.00 $46.00 $27,600.00
103 CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PATCH SY 55 $43.75 $2,406.25 $42.08 $2,314.40 $43.54 $2,394.70 $46.00 $2,530.00
104 GRAVEL DRIVEWAY PATCH SY 490 $11.65 $5,708.50 $11.81 $5,786.90 $9.90 $4,851.00 $11.00 $5,390.00
105 6" PERF PVC DRAIN TILE (FILTRATION BASIN) LF 100 $13.50 $1,350.00 $20.00 $2,000.00 $19.83 $1,983.00 $20.00 $2,000.00
106 6" PVC DRAIN TILE (FILTRATION BASIN) LF 60 $13.50 $810.00 $20.00 $1,200.00 $17.80 $1,068.00 $20.00 $1,200.00
107 6" PVC DRAIN TILE CLEANOUT (FILTRATION BASIN) EA 3 $142.00 $426.00 $133.00 $399.00 $175.51 $526.53 $325.00 $975.00
108 4" PERF PE DRAIN TILE LF 5740 $7.00 $40,180.00 $10.34 $59,351.60 $12.50 $71,750.00 $14.75 $84,665.00
109 4" PERF PVC DRAIN TILE, SCH. 40 LF 500 $11.25 $5,625.00 $14.96 $7,480.00 $17.50 $8,750.00 $20.00 $10,000.00
110 CONNECT TO EXISTING DRAIN TILE EA 20 $90.00 $1,800.00 $110.00 $2,200.00 $35.00 $700.00 $100.00 $2,000.00
111 CONNECT EXISTING DRAIN TILE TO STRUCTURE EA 20 $210.00 $4,200.00 $275.00 $5,500.00 $150.00 $3,000.00 $275.00 $5,500.00
112 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER, SURMOUNTABLE LF 5600 $9.75 $54,600.00 $11.65 $65,240.00 $9.89 $55,384.00 $11.25 $63,000.00
113 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER, DESIGN B618 LF 200 $10.25 $2,050.00 $19.15 $3,830.00 $13.44 $2,688.00 $13.00 $2,600.00
114 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $4,645.00 $4,645.00 $5,110.00 $5,110.00 $9,062.50 $9,062.50 $8,500.00 $8,500.00
115 STREET SWEEPER (WITH PICKUP BROOM) HR 20 $155.00 $3,100.00 $123.00 $2,460.00 $125.00 $2,500.00 $110.00 $2,200.00
116 LANDSCAPE FUND LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
117 WATER FOR DUST CONTROL MGAL 100 $58.00 $5,800.00 $59.00 $5,900.00 $24.50 $2,450.00 $60.00 $6,000.00

193802390BT.xlsm BT-333



BID TABULATION

Item 
Num Item Units Qty Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

Bidder No. 2

Northdale Construction Co., Inc.

Bidder No. 3Bidder No. 1

LaTour Construction, Inc. Widmer Construction, LLC

Bidder No. 4

Burschville Construciton, Inc.

118 SILT FENCE, TYPE MACHINE SLICED LF 600 $1.85 $1,110.00 $2.00 $1,200.00 $2.39 $1,434.00 $2.00 $1,200.00
119 PROTECTION OF CATCH BASIN, NON-STREET EA 15 $210.00 $3,150.00 $250.00 $3,750.00 $125.00 $1,875.00 $150.00 $2,250.00
120 PROTECTION OF CATCH BASIN, STREET EA 33 $190.00 $6,270.00 $325.00 $10,725.00 $170.00 $5,610.00 $250.00 $8,250.00
121 CULVERT PROTECTION EA 5 $65.00 $325.00 $325.00 $1,625.00 $475.00 $2,375.00 $200.00 $1,000.00
122 TEMPORARY ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE EA 5 $1,225.00 $6,125.00 $800.00 $4,000.00 $1,250.00 $6,250.00 $1,000.00 $5,000.00
123 BIOROLL LF 150 $2.95 $442.50 $3.14 $471.00 $3.81 $571.50 $3.00 $450.00
124 SEED MIX 25-151 AND HYDROMULCH SY 13100 $1.00 $13,100.00 $1.03 $13,493.00 $1.01 $13,231.00 $1.20 $15,720.00
125 SEED MIX 25-151 AND BLANKET SY 700 $1.45 $1,015.00 $1.50 $1,050.00 $1.46 $1,022.00 $1.60 $1,120.00
126 SEED MIX 25-151 AND BLANKET, CAT 4 SY 100 $1.75 $175.00 $1.86 $186.00 $1.82 $182.00 $2.00 $200.00
127 DECIDUOUS TREE 2.5" CAL. B&B EA 22 $390.00 $8,580.00 $413.00 $9,086.00 $403.63 $8,879.86 $400.00 $8,800.00
128 5' HIGH CONIFEROUS TREE B&B EA 8 $265.00 $2,120.00 $278.50 $2,228.00 $272.18 $2,177.44 $300.00 $2,400.00
129 SHRUB EA 20 $70.00 $1,400.00 $74.25 $1,485.00 $72.54 $1,450.80 $75.00 $1,500.00
130 PERENNIALS EA 350 $6.00 $2,100.00 $6.00 $2,100.00 $5.84 $2,044.00 $8.00 $2,800.00
131 SIGN PANEL, TYPE C SF 80 $36.00 $2,880.00 $38.00 $3,040.00 $37.09 $2,967.20 $32.00 $2,560.00
132 INSTALL STREET NAME SIGN EA 8 $105.00 $840.00 $110.00 $880.00 $107.50 $860.00 $35.00 $280.00

TOTAL PART A.4:  MAIN STREET WEST STREET $877,934.65 $952,415.60 $1,111,478.58 $1,085,177.50

SUMMARY - PART A:  MAIN STREET WEST IMPROVEMENTS
TOTAL PART A.1 - MAIN STREET WEST SANITARY SEWER $271,530.50 $253,230.00 $252,112.29 $428,950.00

TOTAL PART A.2 - MAIN STREET WEST WATERMAIN $315,173.07 $368,493.50 $278,911.93 $386,010.00
TOTAL PART A.3 - MAIN STREET WEST STORM SEWER $226,783.75 $227,967.00 $225,891.49 $240,235.00

TOTAL PART A.4:  MAIN STREET WEST STREET $877,934.65 $952,415.60 $1,111,478.58 $1,085,177.50
TOTAL PART A:  MAIN STREET WEST IMPROVEMENTS $1,691,421.97 $1,802,106.10 $1,868,394.29 $2,140,372.50

PART B:  RAINBOW AVENUE IMPROVEMENTS
PART B.1:  RAINBOW AVENUE SANITARY SEWER

133 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $36,000.00 $36,000.00 $21,063.00 $21,063.00 $21,688.52 $21,688.52 $30,000.00 $30,000.00
134 REMOVE SANITARY SEWER PIPE LF 1260 $2.10 $2,646.00 $3.00 $3,780.00 $1.25 $1,575.00 $5.00 $6,300.00
135 REMOVE SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE EA 4 $420.00 $1,680.00 $200.00 $800.00 $445.00 $1,780.00 $500.00 $2,000.00
136 REMOVE SANITARY SEWER SERVICE PIPE LF 900 $0.01 $9.00 $3.00 $2,700.00 $1.50 $1,350.00 $5.00 $4,500.00
137 BYPASS PUMPING LS 1 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00
138 IMPROVED PIPE FOUNDATION LF 650 $5.00 $3,250.00 $10.75 $6,987.50 $1.50 $975.00 $2.00 $1,300.00
139 CONNECT TO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER PIPE EA 2 $0.01 $0.02 $3,750.00 $7,500.00 $950.00 $1,900.00 $1,750.00 $3,500.00
140 4' DIAMETER SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE EA 4 $2,300.00 $9,200.00 $1,313.00 $5,252.00 $1,975.84 $7,903.36 $2,250.00 $9,000.00
141 4' DIAMETER SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE OVERDEPTH LF 20 $85.00 $1,700.00 $74.00 $1,480.00 $116.21 $2,324.20 $100.00 $2,000.00
142 8" PVC SANITARY SEWER, SDR-35 LF 1300 $33.25 $43,225.00 $31.50 $40,950.00 $32.09 $41,717.00 $73.00 $94,900.00
143 4" X 8" PVC WYE EA 26 $290.00 $7,540.00 $72.00 $1,872.00 $105.20 $2,735.20 $150.00 $3,900.00
144 4" PVC SANITARY SEWER SERVICE, SCH 40 LF 900 $21.75 $19,575.00 $28.00 $25,200.00 $18.42 $16,578.00 $20.00 $18,000.00
145 RECONNECT SANITARY SEWER SERVICE EA 26 $265.00 $6,890.00 $55.00 $1,430.00 $95.10 $2,472.60 $400.00 $10,400.00
146 ABANDON SANITARY SEWER SERVICE EA 2 $91.00 $182.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $250.00 $500.00 $600.00 $1,200.00
147 TELEVISE SANITARY SEWER LF 1300 $0.60 $780.00 $1.15 $1,495.00 $1.18 $1,534.00 $2.00 $2,600.00

TOTAL PART B.1:  RAINBOW AVENUE SANITARY SEWER $140,677.02 $129,509.50 $107,532.88 $204,600.00

193802390BT.xlsm BT-434



BID TABULATION

Item 
Num Item Units Qty Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

Bidder No. 2

Northdale Construction Co., Inc.

Bidder No. 3Bidder No. 1

LaTour Construction, Inc. Widmer Construction, LLC

Bidder No. 4

Burschville Construciton, Inc.

PART B.2:  RAINBOW AVENUE WATERMAIN
148 REMOVE WATERMAIN PIPE LF 1140 $2.85 $3,249.00 $5.00 $5,700.00 $4.85 $5,529.00 $8.00 $9,120.00
149 ABANDON WATERMAIN PIPE LF 260 $4.00 $1,040.00 $5.00 $1,300.00 $4.50 $1,170.00 $10.00 $2,600.00
150 REMOVE HYDRANT EA 2 $355.00 $710.00 $150.00 $300.00 $275.00 $550.00 $750.00 $1,500.00
151 REMOVE GATE VALVE EA 4 $210.00 $840.00 $100.00 $400.00 $235.00 $940.00 $500.00 $2,000.00
152 REMOVE WATER SERVICE PIPE LF 860 $0.01 $8.60 $3.00 $2,580.00 $1.50 $1,290.00 $8.00 $6,880.00
153 TEMPORARY WATERMAIN LS 1 $9,700.00 $9,700.00 $7,200.00 $7,200.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00
154 IMPROVED PIPE FOUNDATION LF 750 $4.00 $3,000.00 $10.75 $8,062.50 $1.35 $1,012.50 $2.00 $1,500.00
155 1" CORPORATION STOP EA 24 $145.00 $3,480.00 $97.00 $2,328.00 $103.69 $2,488.56 $150.00 $3,600.00
156 1" CURB STOP AND BOX EA 24 $290.00 $6,960.00 $185.00 $4,440.00 $225.51 $5,412.24 $150.00 $3,600.00
157 SERVICE SADDLE EA 24 $135.00 $3,240.00 $97.00 $2,328.00 $76.17 $1,828.08 $100.00 $2,400.00
158 1" TYPE K COPPER WATER SERVICE LF 860 $21.50 $18,490.00 $30.75 $26,445.00 $20.64 $17,750.40 $20.00 $17,200.00
159 RECONNECT TO EXISTING WATER SERVICE EA 24 $170.00 $4,080.00 $103.00 $2,472.00 $103.06 $2,473.44 $400.00 $9,600.00
160 6" GATE VALVE AND BOX EA 4 $1,415.00 $5,660.00 $1,265.00 $5,060.00 $1,260.46 $5,041.84 $1,350.00 $5,400.00
161 8" GATE VALVE AND BOX EA 5 $1,875.00 $9,375.00 $1,676.00 $8,380.00 $1,637.10 $8,185.50 $1,850.00 $9,250.00
162 6" PVC WATERMAIN, C900 LF 80 $24.00 $1,920.00 $30.25 $2,420.00 $27.75 $2,220.00 $30.00 $2,400.00
163 8" PVC WATERMAIN, C900 LF 1380 $28.75 $39,675.00 $34.00 $46,920.00 $24.78 $34,196.40 $34.00 $46,920.00
164 6" X 8" TEE EA 4 $515.00 $2,060.00 $357.00 $1,428.00 $441.87 $1,767.48 $525.00 $2,100.00
165 8" X 8" TEE EA 1 $600.00 $600.00 $417.00 $417.00 $491.40 $491.40 $575.00 $575.00
166 6" X 8" REDUCER EA 1 $281.00 $281.00 $217.00 $217.00 $173.28 $173.28 $325.00 $325.00
167 8" 11.25 DEGREE BEND EA 2 $310.00 $620.00 $264.50 $529.00 $268.10 $536.20 $350.00 $700.00
168 8" 45 DEGREE BEND EA 2 $350.00 $700.00 $273.25 $546.50 $290.39 $580.78 $350.00 $700.00
169 HYDRANT EA 4 $3,700.00 $14,800.00 $3,020.00 $12,080.00 $3,416.10 $13,664.40 $3,400.00 $13,600.00
170 WATERMAIN OFFSET EA 2 $1,350.00 $2,700.00 $4,250.00 $8,500.00 $2,538.12 $5,076.24 $2,500.00 $5,000.00
171 ABANDON WATER SERVICE EA 2 $0.01 $0.02 $500.00 $1,000.00 $245.00 $490.00 $600.00 $1,200.00
172 CONNECT TO EXISTING WATERMAIN EA 2 $1,600.00 $3,200.00 $1,630.00 $3,260.00 $1,137.72 $2,275.44 $1,000.00 $2,000.00
173 4" INSULATION SY 20 $54.00 $1,080.00 $36.00 $720.00 $33.88 $677.60 $50.00 $1,000.00

TOTAL PART B.2:  RAINBOW AVENUE WATERMAIN $137,468.62 $155,033.00 $119,320.78 $163,170.00

PART B.3:  RAINBOW AVENUE STORM SEWER
174 REMOVE STORM SEWER PIPE LF 750 $7.50 $5,625.00 $8.00 $6,000.00 $6.85 $5,137.50 $10.00 $7,500.00
175 REMOVE STORM SEWER STRUCTURE EA 8 $325.00 $2,600.00 $150.00 $1,200.00 $435.00 $3,480.00 $400.00 $3,200.00
176 2' X 3' CATCH BASIN EA 3 $1,525.00 $4,575.00 $933.00 $2,799.00 $1,333.00 $3,999.00 $1,550.00 $4,650.00
177 27" DIAMETER CATCH BASIN EA 3 $1,285.00 $3,855.00 $827.00 $2,481.00 $950.00 $2,850.00 $1,350.00 $4,050.00
178 48" DIAMETER CATCH BASIN MANHOLE EA 10 $1,950.00 $19,500.00 $1,204.00 $12,040.00 $1,595.00 $15,950.00 $2,200.00 $22,000.00
179 48" DIAMETER MANHOLE EA 1 $2,215.00 $2,215.00 $1,204.00 $1,204.00 $1,485.00 $1,485.00 $2,200.00 $2,200.00
180 12" RCP STORM SEWER PIPE LF 312 $27.25 $8,502.00 $37.75 $11,778.00 $33.74 $10,526.88 $28.00 $8,736.00
181 15" RCP STORM SEWER PIPE LF 31 $30.00 $930.00 $38.75 $1,201.25 $35.77 $1,108.87 $30.00 $930.00
182 18" RCP STORM SEWER PIPE LF 293 $33.25 $9,742.25 $40.75 $11,939.75 $37.20 $10,899.60 $33.00 $9,669.00
183 21" RCP STORM SEWER PIPE, CL. 3 LF 179 $37.75 $6,757.25 $52.75 $9,442.25 $39.50 $7,070.50 $36.00 $6,444.00
184 12" HDPE STORM SEWER PIPE LF 290 $25.75 $7,467.50 $33.25 $9,642.50 $39.06 $11,327.40 $30.00 $8,700.00
185 15" HDPE STORM SEWER PIPE LF 142 $30.75 $4,366.50 $36.25 $5,147.50 $46.85 $6,652.70 $34.00 $4,828.00
186 CONNECT TO EXISTING STORM SEWER PIPE EA 1 $845.00 $845.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $750.00 $750.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00

TOTAL PART B.3:  RAINBOW AVENUE STORM SEWER $76,980.50 $79,375.25 $81,237.45 $84,407.00

193802390BT.xlsm BT-535



BID TABULATION

Item 
Num Item Units Qty Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

Bidder No. 2

Northdale Construction Co., Inc.

Bidder No. 3Bidder No. 1

LaTour Construction, Inc. Widmer Construction, LLC

Bidder No. 4

Burschville Construciton, Inc.

PART B.4:  RAINBOW AVENUE STREET 
187 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $4,600.00 $4,600.00 $3,630.00 $3,630.00 $17,525.00 $17,525.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00
188 REMOVE TREE EA 5 $425.00 $2,125.00 $1,100.00 $5,500.00 $1,075.00 $5,375.00 $750.00 $3,750.00
189 REMOVE SHRUB EA 3 $52.00 $156.00 $55.00 $165.00 $53.75 $161.25 $50.00 $150.00
190 REMOVE CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER LF 100 $4.60 $460.00 $8.25 $825.00 $3.75 $375.00 $6.00 $600.00
191 REMOVE BITUMINOUS DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT SY 450 $3.00 $1,350.00 $3.30 $1,485.00 $4.50 $2,025.00 $3.00 $1,350.00
192 REMOVE CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT SY 390 $6.00 $2,340.00 $9.35 $3,646.50 $7.00 $2,730.00 $3.50 $1,365.00
193 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SY 4100 $4.15 $17,015.00 $4.40 $18,040.00 $2.65 $10,865.00 $3.00 $12,300.00
194 REMOVE DRAINTILE LF 3000 $1.05 $3,150.00 $3.00 $9,000.00 $1.00 $3,000.00 $1.25 $3,750.00
195 SAWING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT LF 370 $3.15 $1,165.50 $2.75 $1,017.50 $4.85 $1,794.50 $3.50 $1,295.00
196 SAWING CONCRETE PAVEMENT LF 200 $4.15 $830.00 $6.05 $1,210.00 $6.85 $1,370.00 $6.00 $1,200.00
197 REMOVE SIGN EA 7 $26.15 $183.05 $27.50 $192.50 $26.88 $188.16 $50.00 $350.00
198 TEMPORARY MAILBOXES LS 1 $1,900.00 $1,900.00 $1,980.00 $1,980.00 $1,935.00 $1,935.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00
199 COMMON EXCAVATION (EV) CY 4500 $12.00 $54,000.00 $12.76 $57,420.00 $19.75 $88,875.00 $17.00 $76,500.00
200 COMMON EXCAVATION (EV) - SPECIAL 1 CY 200 $17.45 $3,490.00 $15.00 $3,000.00 $23.75 $4,750.00 $19.00 $3,800.00
201 SUBGRADE EXCAVATION (EV) CY 500 $13.45 $6,725.00 $20.74 $10,370.00 $19.75 $9,875.00 $15.50 $7,750.00
202 TOPSOIL BORROW (LV) CY 1300 $16.45 $21,385.00 $22.00 $28,600.00 $23.16 $30,108.00 $15.00 $19,500.00
203 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC TYPE V SY 4900 $2.15 $10,535.00 $1.84 $9,016.00 $1.55 $7,595.00 $2.10 $10,290.00
204 SELECT GRANULAR BORROW - STREET CY 1800 $21.20 $38,160.00 $22.00 $39,600.00 $29.30 $52,740.00 $20.00 $36,000.00
205 SELECT GRANULAR BORROW MODIFIED - FILTRATION BASIN CY 60 $42.50 $2,550.00 $40.00 $2,400.00 $33.50 $2,010.00 $43.00 $2,580.00
206 PLANTING SOIL - FILTRATION BASIN CY 50 $39.55 $1,977.50 $43.00 $2,150.00 $41.24 $2,062.00 $62.00 $3,100.00
207 AGGREGATE BASE CLASS 5, 100% CRUSHED TON 2500 $13.55 $33,875.00 $13.65 $34,125.00 $20.50 $51,250.00 $18.00 $45,000.00
208 AGGREGATE MATERIAL FOR ACCESS CY 500 $10.00 $5,000.00 $21.00 $10,500.00 $9.50 $4,750.00 $32.00 $16,000.00
209 ADJUST MANHOLE CASTING EA 4 $300.00 $1,200.00 $693.00 $2,772.00 $325.00 $1,300.00 $600.00 $2,400.00
210 ADJUST VALVE BOX EA 5 $180.00 $900.00 $367.50 $1,837.50 $270.00 $1,350.00 $400.00 $2,000.00
211 EXTERNAL SEAL SYSTEM EA 4 $240.00 $960.00 $157.50 $630.00 $224.75 $899.00 $250.00 $1,000.00
212 BITUMINOUS MATERIAL FOR TACK COAT GAL 210 $3.40 $714.00 $3.41 $716.10 $3.49 $732.90 $3.25 $682.50
213 TYPE SP 12.5 WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (2,B) TON 400 $66.00 $26,400.00 $66.42 $26,568.00 $68.21 $27,284.00 $70.00 $28,000.00
214 TYPE SP 12.5 NON WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (2,B) TON 500 $64.25 $32,125.00 $64.79 $32,395.00 $66.33 $33,165.00 $67.00 $33,500.00
215 BITUMINOUS DRIVEWAY PATCH SY 460 $22.35 $10,281.00 $19.32 $8,887.20 $19.78 $9,098.80 $22.00 $10,120.00
216 CONCRETE DRIVEWAY APRON SY 300 $43.75 $13,125.00 $42.08 $12,624.00 $43.54 $13,062.00 $46.00 $13,800.00
217 CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PATCH SY 390 $43.75 $17,062.50 $42.08 $16,411.20 $43.54 $16,980.60 $46.00 $17,940.00
218 GRAVEL DRIVEWAY PATCH SY 290 $13.15 $3,813.50 $24.00 $6,960.00 $9.90 $2,871.00 $11.00 $3,190.00
219 6" PERF PVC DRAIN TILE (FILTRATION BASIN) LF 100 $13.45 $1,345.00 $20.00 $2,000.00 $17.97 $1,797.00 $20.00 $2,000.00
220 6" PVC DRAIN TILE (FILTRATION BASIN) LF 60 $13.45 $807.00 $20.00 $1,200.00 $17.00 $1,020.00 $20.00 $1,200.00
221 6" PVC DRAIN TILE CLEANOUT (FILTRATION BASIN) EA 3 $142.00 $426.00 $133.00 $399.00 $184.97 $554.91 $325.00 $975.00
222 4" PERF PE DRAIN TILE LF 2800 $7.00 $19,600.00 $10.34 $28,952.00 $12.50 $35,000.00 $14.75 $41,300.00
223 4" PERF PVC DRAIN TILE, SCH. 40 LF 230 $11.25 $2,587.50 $14.96 $3,440.80 $17.02 $3,914.60 $20.00 $4,600.00
224 CONNECT TO EXISTING DRAIN TILE EA 5 $90.00 $450.00 $110.00 $550.00 $45.00 $225.00 $100.00 $500.00
225 CONNECT EXISTING DRAIN TILE TO STRUCTURE EA 5 $210.00 $1,050.00 $275.00 $1,375.00 $150.00 $750.00 $275.00 $1,375.00
226 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER, SURMOUNTABLE LF 3000 $9.75 $29,250.00 $11.65 $34,950.00 $9.89 $29,670.00 $11.25 $33,750.00
227 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $2,100.00 $2,100.00 $2,300.00 $2,300.00 $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $2,750.00 $2,750.00
228 STREET SWEEPER (WITH PICKUP BROOM) HR 10 $155.00 $1,550.00 $123.00 $1,230.00 $125.00 $1,250.00 $110.00 $1,100.00
229 LANDSCAPE FUND LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
230 WATER FOR DUST CONTROL MGAL 100 $58.00 $5,800.00 $59.00 $5,900.00 $24.50 $2,450.00 $60.00 $6,000.00

193802390BT.xlsm BT-636



BID TABULATION

Item 
Num Item Units Qty Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

Bidder No. 2

Northdale Construction Co., Inc.

Bidder No. 3Bidder No. 1

LaTour Construction, Inc. Widmer Construction, LLC

Bidder No. 4

Burschville Construciton, Inc.

231 SILT FENCE, TYPE MACHINE SLICED LF 300 $1.85 $555.00 $2.00 $600.00 $2.39 $717.00 $2.00 $600.00
232 PROTECTION OF CATCH BASIN, NON-STREET EA 7 $210.00 $1,470.00 $250.00 $1,750.00 $125.00 $875.00 $150.00 $1,050.00
233 PROTECTION OF CATCH BASIN, STREET EA 13 $190.00 $2,470.00 $325.00 $4,225.00 $170.00 $2,210.00 $250.00 $3,250.00
234 TEMPORARY ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE EA 2 $1,225.00 $2,450.00 $800.00 $1,600.00 $1,250.00 $2,500.00 $1,000.00 $2,000.00
235 BIOROLL LF 200 $3.00 $600.00 $3.00 $600.00 $3.71 $742.00 $3.00 $600.00
236 SEED MIX 25-151 AND HYDROMULCH SY 5500 $1.00 $5,500.00 $1.06 $5,830.00 $1.03 $5,665.00 $1.25 $6,875.00
237 DECIDUOUS TREE 2.5" CAL. B&B EA 8 $390.00 $3,120.00 $413.00 $3,304.00 $403.63 $3,229.04 $400.00 $3,200.00
238 5' HIGH CONIFEROUS TREE B&B EA 2 $265.00 $530.00 $278.50 $557.00 $272.18 $544.36 $300.00 $600.00
239 SHRUB EA 3 $70.00 $210.00 $74.25 $222.75 $72.54 $217.62 $75.00 $225.00
240 SIGN PANELS, TYPE C SF 30 $36.00 $1,080.00 $36.25 $1,087.50 $37.09 $1,112.70 $32.00 $960.00
241 INSTALL STREET NAME SIGN EA 2 $105.00 $210.00 $105.00 $210.00 $107.50 $215.00 $35.00 $70.00

TOTAL PART B.4:  RAINBOW AVENUE STREETS $407,713.55 $460,956.55 $509,511.44 $516,742.50

SUMMARY - PART B:  RAINBOW AVENUE IMPROVEMENTS
TOTAL PART B.1:  RAINBOW AVENUE SANITARY SEWER $140,677.02 $129,509.50 $107,532.88 $204,600.00
TOTAL PART B.2:  RAINBOW AVENUE WATERMAIN $137,468.62 $155,033.00 $119,320.78 $163,170.00
TOTAL PART B.3:  RAINBOW AVENUE STORM SEWER $76,980.50 $79,375.25 $81,237.45 $84,407.00
TOTAL PART B.4:  RAINBOW AVENUE STREETS $407,713.55 $460,956.55 $509,511.44 $516,742.50
TOTAL PART B:  RAINBOW AVENUE IMPROVEMENTS $762,839.69 $824,874.30 $817,602.55 $968,919.50

PART C:  RAINBOW PARK STORM SEWER AND RAVINE IMPROVEMENTS
242 REMOVE TREE EA 10 $420.00 $4,200.00 $440.00 $4,400.00 $430.00 $4,300.00 $350.00 $3,500.00
243 REMOVE SHRUB EA 4 $52.00 $208.00 $55.00 $220.00 $53.75 $215.00 $50.00 $200.00
244 TREE TRIMMING LS 1 $1,575.00 $1,575.00 $3,300.00 $3,300.00 $3,225.00 $3,225.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
245 REMOVE DEBRIS - RAVINE LS 1 $1,050.00 $1,050.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $1,075.00 $1,075.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
246 REMOVE STORM SEWER PIPE LF 500 $9.00 $4,500.00 $8.00 $4,000.00 $6.85 $3,425.00 $10.00 $5,000.00
247 REMOVE CONCRETE BOX CULVERT LF 89 $75.00 $6,675.00 $90.00 $8,010.00 $25.00 $2,225.00 $200.00 $17,800.00
248 REMOVE STORM SEWER STRUCTURE EA 2 $450.00 $900.00 $150.00 $300.00 $445.00 $890.00 $500.00 $1,000.00
249 SALVAGE AND REINSTALL STORM SEWER PIPE LF 60 $30.00 $1,800.00 $43.00 $2,580.00 $34.50 $2,070.00 $100.00 $6,000.00
250 SALVAGE AND REINSTALL FLARED END SECTION EA 1 $490.00 $490.00 $250.00 $250.00 $325.00 $325.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
251 SALVAGE AND REINSTALL STORM SEWER STRUCTURE EA 1 $1,035.00 $1,035.00 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 $975.00 $975.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
252 SALVAGE AND REINSTALL TREE EA 4 $235.00 $940.00 $247.50 $990.00 $241.88 $967.52 $300.00 $1,200.00
253 CONNECT EXISTING DRAINTILE TO STRUCTURE EA 4 $215.00 $860.00 $150.00 $600.00 $150.00 $600.00 $400.00 $1,600.00
254 6" PERF PVC DRAINTILE LF 120 $14.25 $1,710.00 $25.00 $3,000.00 $17.92 $2,150.40 $20.00 $2,400.00
255 6" CLEANOUT EA 2 $142.00 $284.00 $103.00 $206.00 $185.52 $371.04 $325.00 $650.00
256 21" RCP STORM SEWER PIPE, CL. 3 LF 17 $43.35 $736.95 $42.75 $726.75 $41.33 $702.61 $36.00 $612.00
257 48" RCP STORM SEWER PIPE, CL. 4 LF 125 $138.00 $17,250.00 $131.00 $16,375.00 $157.48 $19,685.00 $175.00 $21,875.00
258 12" HDPE STORM SEWER LF 187 $25.50 $4,768.50 $33.75 $6,311.25 $30.58 $5,718.46 $30.00 $5,610.00
259 24" HDPE STORM SEWER LF 910 $45.00 $40,950.00 $44.75 $40,722.50 $45.32 $41,241.20 $44.00 $40,040.00
260 48" FLARED END SECTION EA 1 $3,225.00 $3,225.00 $2,269.00 $2,269.00 $3,535.65 $3,535.65 $3,700.00 $3,700.00
261 27" DIAMETER CATCH BASIN EA 2 $1,300.00 $2,600.00 $827.00 $1,654.00 $950.00 $1,900.00 $1,350.00 $2,700.00
262 48" DIAMETER CATCH BASIN MANHOLE EA 5 $2,000.00 $10,000.00 $1,184.00 $5,920.00 $1,595.00 $7,975.00 $2,200.00 $11,000.00
263 60" DIAMETER CATCH BASIN MANHOLE EA 1 $2,600.00 $2,600.00 $1,791.00 $1,791.00 $1,985.00 $1,985.00 $2,900.00 $2,900.00
264 96" DIAMETER CATCH BASIN MANHOLE EA 1 $7,800.00 $7,800.00 $3,752.00 $3,752.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00
265 CONNECT TO EXISTING STORM MH-2 EA 1 $3,910.00 $3,910.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $850.00 $850.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00
266 SITE GRADING - RAINBOW PARK LS 1 $5,475.00 $5,475.00 $4,200.00 $4,200.00 $6,950.00 $6,950.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00

193802390BT.xlsm BT-737



BID TABULATION

Item 
Num Item Units Qty Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

Bidder No. 2

Northdale Construction Co., Inc.

Bidder No. 3Bidder No. 1

LaTour Construction, Inc. Widmer Construction, LLC

Bidder No. 4

Burschville Construciton, Inc.

267 SITE GRADING - RAVINE LS 1 $1,625.00 $1,625.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $4,850.00 $4,850.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00
268 RELOCATE GRAVEL TRAIL SY 155 $12.30 $1,906.50 $24.00 $3,720.00 $12.75 $1,976.25 $40.00 $6,200.00
269 RANDOM RIPRAP, CLASS 4 CY 33 $91.00 $3,003.00 $105.00 $3,465.00 $103.50 $3,415.50 $95.00 $3,135.00
270 DECIDUOUS TREE 2.5" CAL. B&B EA 10 $390.00 $3,900.00 $413.00 $4,130.00 $403.63 $4,036.30 $400.00 $4,000.00
271 SHRUB EA 4 $70.00 $280.00 $74.75 $299.00 $72.54 $290.16 $75.00 $300.00
272 SEED MIX 25-151 AND BLANKET, CAT. 4 SY 250 $1.50 $375.00 $1.61 $402.50 $1.57 $392.50 $2.00 $500.00
273 SEED MIX 25-151 AND HYDROMULCH SY 6000 $1.00 $6,000.00 $1.05 $6,300.00 $1.02 $6,120.00 $1.20 $7,200.00
274 SEED MIX 25-141 AND BLANKET, CAT. 4 SY 300 $1.50 $450.00 $1.61 $483.00 $1.57 $471.00 $2.00 $600.00
275 SEED MIX 25-141 AND TURF REINFORCEMENT MAT SY 250 $10.40 $2,600.00 $11.10 $2,775.00 $10.85 $2,712.50 $11.00 $2,750.00
276 SILT FENCE, TYPE MACHINE-SLICED LF 1000 $1.85 $1,850.00 $2.00 $2,000.00 $1.94 $1,940.00 $2.00 $2,000.00
277 FLOTATION SILT FENCE, MOVING WATER LF 125 $17.00 $2,125.00 $18.25 $2,281.25 $17.80 $2,225.00 $19.00 $2,375.00
278 PROTECTION OF CATCH BASIN, NON-STREET EA 10 $206.00 $2,060.00 $250.00 $2,500.00 $125.00 $1,250.00 $150.00 $1,500.00
279 BIOROLL LF 300 $2.85 $855.00 $3.00 $900.00 $3.71 $1,113.00 $3.00 $900.00

TOTAL PART C:  RAINBOW PARK STORM SEWER AND RAVINE IMPROVEMENTS $152,571.95 $146,133.25 $149,649.09 $198,747.00

PART D:  HALGREN ROAD WATERMAIN IMPROVEMENTS
280 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $8,200.00 $8,200.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $9,705.97 $9,705.97 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
281 CLEARING AND GRUBBING LS 1 $3,700.00 $3,700.00 $4,400.00 $4,400.00 $4,300.00 $4,300.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00
282 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $1,050.00 $1,050.00 $1,150.00 $1,150.00 $1,343.75 $1,343.75 $1,500.00 $1,500.00
283 CONNECT TO EXISTING WATERMAIN - NORTH END EA 1 $3,185.00 $3,185.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $8,000.00 $8,000.00
284 12" PVC WATERMAIN, C-900 LF 50 $69.50 $3,475.00 $49.50 $2,475.00 $82.46 $4,123.00 $100.00 $5,000.00
285 12" GATE VALVE AND BOX EA 1 $3,235.00 $3,235.00 $3,398.00 $3,398.00 $3,092.74 $3,092.74 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
286 24-INCH STEEL CASING PIPE, JACKED LF 100 $717.00 $71,700.00 $474.75 $47,475.00 $1,001.43 $100,143.00 $1,000.00 $100,000.00
287 DIRECTIONAL DRILL 14" HDPE WATERMAIN LF 350 $210.00 $73,500.00 $125.50 $43,925.00 $206.40 $72,240.00 $175.00 $61,250.00
288 12"-45 DEGREE BEND EA 2 $690.00 $1,380.00 $452.00 $904.00 $657.47 $1,314.94 $1,000.00 $2,000.00
289 SILT FENCE, TYPE MACHINE SLICED LF 200 $2.60 $520.00 $2.75 $550.00 $3.44 $688.00 $3.50 $700.00
290 TEMPORARY ROCK CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE EA 1 $1,225.00 $1,225.00 $800.00 $800.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
291 SEED MIX 25-141 AND HYDROMULCH SY 800 $1.80 $1,440.00 $1.93 $1,544.00 $1.88 $1,504.00 $2.25 $1,800.00
292 SEED MIX 25-141 AND BLANKET, CAT 4 SY 500 $1.60 $800.00 $1.72 $860.00 $1.68 $840.00 $2.00 $1,000.00

TOTAL PART D:  HALGREN ROAD WATERMAIN IMPROVEMENTS $173,410.00 $129,981.00 $208,295.40 $199,250.00

BID SUMMARY - BASE BID
PART A:  MAIN STREET WEST IMPROVEMENTS $1,691,421.97 $1,802,106.10 $1,868,394.29 $2,140,372.50
PART B:  RAINBOW AVENUE IMPROVEMENTS $762,839.69 $824,874.30 $817,602.55 $968,919.50
PART C:  RAINBOW PARK STORM SEWER AND RAVINE IMPROVEMENTS $152,571.95 $146,133.25 $149,649.09 $198,747.00
PART D:  HALGREN ROAD WATERMAIN IMPROVEMENTS $173,410.00 $129,981.00 $208,295.40 $199,250.00

TOTAL BASE BID $2,780,243.61 $2,903,094.65 $3,043,941.33 $3,507,289.00

ALTERNATE NO. 1:  RAINBOW PARK PARKING LOT PAVING
293 SUBGRADE PREPARATION SY 1630 $1.60 $2,608.00 $1.65 $2,689.50 $2.50 $4,075.00 $4.50 $7,335.00
294 AGGREGATE BASE CLASS 5, 100% CRUSHED TON 300 $20.75 $6,225.00 $21.78 $6,534.00 $24.50 $7,350.00 $18.00 $5,400.00
295 TYPE SP 9.5 WEARING COURSE MIXTURE (2,B) TON 300 $78.00 $23,400.00 $78.80 $23,640.00 $80.68 $24,204.00 $78.25 $23,475.00

TOTAL ALTERNATE NO. 1:  RAINBOW PARK PARKING LOT 
PAVING

$32,233.00 $32,863.50 $35,629.00 $36,210.00

193802390BT.xlsm BT-838



BID TABULATION

Item 
Num Item Units Qty Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

Bidder No. 2

Northdale Construction Co., Inc.

Bidder No. 3Bidder No. 1

LaTour Construction, Inc. Widmer Construction, LLC

Bidder No. 4

Burschville Construciton, Inc.

Phone: 320-963-5993 952-955-5062 763-428-4868 763-497-4242

Fax 320-963-6017 952-955-5034 763-428-4997 763-497-4266

Signed By: Joseph LaTour Thomas A. Wilebski James E. Schendel

Title: Vice President Managing Member President President
Bid Bond Bid Bond Bid Bond Bid Bond
2 2 2 2
jimmy@latourconstruction.com tonyv.widmerconst@frontier.com tomw@northdaleconst.com burschvilleconst@embarqmail.com

Contractor Name and Address:

Addenda Acknowledged:
Bid Security:

LaTour Construction, Inc.
2134 County Road 8
Maple Lake, MN 55358

Northdale Construction Co., Inc.
9760 71st St. NE
Albertville, MN 55301

Widmer Construction, LLC
9455 County Road 15
Maple Plain, MN 55359

Tony Vanderlinde

Burschville Construciton, Inc.
11440 8th St. NE
P.O.Box 65
Hanover, MN 55341

Email

193802390BT.xlsm BT-939



CITY OF MAPLE PLAIN  
Resolution No. 14-0411-01 

Accepting Bids for Main Street West and Rainbow Avenue Utility and Street 
Improvements 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to an advertisement for bids for the Main Street West and Rainbow 
Avenue Utility and Street Improvements, the improvement of Main Street West between Halgren 
Road and the west City Limits and Rainbow Avenue between Main Street West and Parkview 
Road by utility and street improvements, bids were received, opened, and tabulated according 
to the law, and the following bids were received complying with the advertisement: 

 
 

Contractor Total Base Bid 
Alternate No. 1-Pave 

Rainbow Park Parking Lot
Low LaTour Construction, Inc. $2,780,243.61 $32,233.00
#2 Widmer Construction, LLC $2,903,094.65 $32,863.50
#3 Northdale Construction Co., Inc. $3,043,941.33 $35,629.00
#4 Burschville Construction, Inc. $3,507,289.00 $36,210.00

 
 
AND WHEREAS, it appears that LaTour Construction, Inc. of Maple Lake, Minnesota is the 
lowest responsible bidder, 
 
AND WHEREAS, the City Council approved a motion on April 14, 2014 to proceed with an 
Adjusted Total Base Bid of $2,812,476.61 which includes the Total Base Bid and Alternate #1.  
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF MAPLE PLAIN, 
MINNESOTA: 
 
1. The mayor and administrator are hereby authorized and directed to enter into the attached 
contract with LaTour Construction, Inc. of Maple Lake, Minnesota in the name of the city of 
Maple Plain for the improvement of Main Street West between Halgren Road and the west City 
Limits and Rainbow Avenue between Main Street West and Parkview Road according to the 
plans and specifications therefor approved by the city council and on file in the office of the city 
administrator. 
 
2. The city administrator is hereby authorized and directed to return forthwith to all bidders the 
deposits made with their bids, except that the deposits of the successful bidder and the next 
lowest bidder shall be retained until a contract has been signed. 
 
Adopted by the City Council this 14th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
 
               
         Mayor 
    ___________ 
City Administrator 
 
 

END OF FORM 

40



 

41



 
 
 

Agenda Information Memorandum 
April 14, 2014 - Maple Plain City Council 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

B. BUDD AVENUE SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS 
 
 
ACTION TO BE CONSIDERED 
 
Approve Resolution 14-0411-02, awarding the Budd Avenue Sanitary Sewer Improvements to 
G.F. Jedlicki, Inc. in the amount of $267,302.00.  
 
FACTS 

 The City has a sag in the existing sanitary pipe under TH 12. 
 Due to the sag and grease buildup in the line, the City cleans and jets the Budd sanitary 

sewer pipe from Independence to Main Street on a yearly basis. 
 The City had looked at replacing this sewer line back in 2012 when MNDOT was doing 

their overlay improvements on TH 12.  The City looked at increasing the size of the new 
sewer line to address future growth in Independence.  After looking at the feasibility of the 
improvements and costs, the City decided to not proceed with the replacement at that 
time. 

 An apparent void in the bottom of the pipe has thought to have developed based on a 
June 2013 televising report from the company that does the City’s TV reports.  The 
camera was not able to go through to see how big the void was at that time.  The void is 
located around 10 feet south of the centerline of TH 12.   

 Due to the void and the concern that this could lead to a settlement in TH 12, the City 
authorized preparation of plans and specifications to replace the sanitary sewer pipe from 
Independence to Main Street on Budd Avenue in late summer 2013.   

 A bid opening was set for September 9, 2013.  No bids were received.   
 The majority of the contractors indicated they were too busy to do this work still this fall.  

The Council discussed rebidding this project right away, but due to the timeframe for re-
advertising, the Council discussed rebidding this winter with other projects. 

 City Staff and Engineer discussed a short-term repair of the void in the pipe. 
 The City Engineer contacted two companies who do spot repairs to get pricing.    
 A repair companies indicated fixing voids in the bottom of a pipe can be difficult and may 

not be able to be done. They would not know for sure on the costs until they televised the 
line themselves.  

 The City hired one of the contractors, and they were able to get their camera through the 
apparent void.   

42



 The new televising showed that there was not a void as thought from the June 2013 
televising.   

 Public Works staff was still concerned with the amount of the sag in this area and the 
continual maintenance issues and grease build-up.     

 Public Works staff felt the Maple Street watermain improvements could be eliminated 
from the project, but recommend the City Council replace the Budd Sanitary Sewer as 
proposed in the previous plans. 

 The Council discussed proceeding with the sanitary sewer work at their February 24, 
2014 Worksession, and approved readvertising the Budd Avenue Sanitary Sewer part of 
the original project at their March 10, 2014 Council Meeting. 

 The plans were updated and bids were received on April 8, 2014.   
 Three contractors submitted bids, and the low bidder was G.F. Jedlicki, Inc. of Eden 

Prairie in the amount of $267,302.  This is around $17,000 (6.9%) higher than our 
updated engineer’s estimate of $250,000, but almost $30,000 less than the next lowest 
bidder. 

 The City bonded for this project in 2013. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attached on page(s) ____through ____ is the Bid Results Letter and Bid Tabulation and 
Resolution 14-0411-02.   

43



Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
2335 Highway 36 West 
St. Paul MN  55113 
Tel:  (651) 636-4600 
Fax: (651) 636-1311 

 

   
 

April 10, 2014 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Maple Plain 
1620 Maple St. 
P. O. Box 97 
Maple Plain, MN 55359 
 
Re: Budd Avenue Utility Improvements 
 Project No. 193802383 

Bid Results 
 
Dear Honorable Mayor and City Council: 
 
Bids were opened for the Project stated above on April 8, 2014.  Transmitted herewith is a copy of 
the Bid Tabulation for your information and file.  Copies will also be distributed to each Bidder 
once the Project has been awarded.  
 
There were a total of 3 Bids.  The following summarizes the results of the Bids received: 
 
 Contractor Total Base Bid  
Low G.F. Jedlicki, Inc. $267,302.00  
#2 LaTour Construction, Inc. $296,346.85  
#3 Minger Construction, Inc. $337,188.10  

 
The low Bidder on the Project was G.F Jedlicki, Inc. with a Total Base Bid Amount of $267,302.00. 
This compares to the Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Costs of $250,000. These Bids have been 
reviewed and found to be in order. 
 
If the City Council wishes to award the Project to the low Bidder, then G.F. Jedlicki, Inc. should be 
awarded the Project on the Total Base Bid Amount of $267,302.  
 
Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (651) 604-4829. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. 
 
 

 
 
Dan D. Boyum, PE 
 
Enclosure 

44



Project Name:

City Project No.: Stantec Project No.:

Bid Opening: Owner:

License No. 23451

BID TABULATION

Item 
Num Item Units Qty Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

BASE BID
1 MOBILIZATION LS 1 $6,900.00 $6,900.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00
2 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 $15,400.00 $15,400.00 $17,700.00 $17,700.00 $18,150.00 $18,150.00
3 SAWCUT BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT LF 380 $5.00 $1,900.00 $3.75 $1,425.00 $3.80 $1,444.00
4 REMOVE BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SY 1850 $4.00 $7,400.00 $6.35 $11,747.50 $13.10 $24,235.00
5 REMOVE CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER LF 40 $4.00 $160.00 $5.60 $224.00 $10.70 $428.00
6 REMOVE CONCRETE SIDEWALK SY 30 $4.00 $120.00 $7.25 $217.50 $8.65 $259.50
7 PATCH BITUMINOUS STREET SY 1850 $37.00 $68,450.00 $40.50 $74,925.00 $45.00 $83,250.00
8 4" CONCRETE SIDEWALK SY 30 $65.00 $1,950.00 $60.00 $1,800.00 $73.00 $2,190.00
9 REMOVE SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE EA 2 $1,500.00 $3,000.00 $455.00 $910.00 $950.00 $1,900.00
10 REMOVE SANITARY SEWER PIPE LF 60 $18.00 $1,080.00 $3.25 $195.00 $14.15 $849.00
11 ABANDON SANITARY SEWER PIPE LF 401 $12.00 $4,812.00 $4.20 $1,684.20 $8.10 $3,248.10
12 SILT FENCE, MACHINE SLICED LF 175 $4.00 $700.00 $3.45 $603.75 $7.25 $1,268.75
13 INLET PROTECTION EA 5 $150.00 $750.00 $230.00 $1,150.00 $115.00 $575.00
14 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE EA 2 $740.00 $1,480.00 $1,275.00 $2,550.00 $915.00 $1,830.00
15 COMMON EXCAVATION CY 420 $22.00 $9,240.00 $20.25 $8,505.00 $15.85 $6,657.00
16 RESTRICTED TRENCH LF 290 $27.00 $7,830.00 $0.01 $2.90 $28.80 $8,352.00
17 10" PVC SANITARY SEWER LF 295 $85.00 $25,075.00 $99.25 $29,278.75 $117.70 $34,721.50
18 IMPROVED PIPE FOUNDATION LF 295 $3.00 $885.00 $5.00 $1,475.00 $4.25 $1,253.75
19 CONNECT TO EXISTING SANITARY SEWER EA 6 $1,200.00 $7,200.00 $3,300.00 $19,800.00 $1,660.00 $9,960.00
20 10" x 4" PVC WYE EA 3 $400.00 $1,200.00 $485.00 $1,455.00 $200.00 $600.00
21 4" PVC SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LF 90 $35.00 $3,150.00 $25.75 $2,317.50 $26.50 $2,385.00
22 CONNECT TO EXISTING SERVICE EA 3 $500.00 $1,500.00 $308.00 $924.00 $1,990.00 $5,970.00
23 BYPASS PUMPING LS 1 $10,410.00 $10,410.00 $16,800.00 $16,800.00 $7,575.00 $7,575.00
24 22" STEEL CASING, JACKED LF 115 $390.00 $44,850.00 $580.00 $66,700.00 $575.50 $66,182.50
25 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER LF 40 $39.00 $1,560.00 $40.00 $1,600.00 $38.00 $1,520.00
26 4' DIAMETER MANHOLE EA 4 $6,120.00 $24,480.00 $2,480.00 $9,920.00 $5,200.00 $20,800.00
27 MANHOLE OVERDEPTH LF 34 $150.00 $5,100.00 $89.00 $3,026.00 $100.00 $3,400.00
28 EXTERNAL SEAL SYSTEM EA 4 $400.00 $1,600.00 $260.00 $1,040.00 $400.00 $1,600.00
29 TELEVISE SANITARY SEWER LF 405 $4.00 $1,620.00 $2.15 $870.75 $2.80 $1,134.00
30 RESTORATION LS 1 $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $13,450.00 $13,450.00

TOTAL BASE BID $267,302.00 $296,346.85 $337,188.10

SUMMARY:
TOTAL BASE BID $267,302.00 $296,346.85 $337,188.10

I hereby certify that this is an exact
reproduction of bids received.

Bidder No. 2

Minger Construction, Inc.

Budd Avenue Utility Improvements

City of Maple Plain, MinnesotaTuesday, April 8, 2014, at 11 A.M., CDT

193802383

Bidder No. 3Bidder No. 1

G. F. Jedlicki, Inc. LaTour Construction, Inc.

Dan D. Boyum, PE

Contractor Name and Address: G. F. Jedlicki, Inc.
14203 West 62nd Street
Eden Prairie, MN 55346

Minger Construction, Inc.
2471 Galpin Ct. #110
Chanhasses, MN 55317

LaTour Construction, Inc.
2134 County Road 8
Maple Lake, MN 55358

193802383BT.xlsm BT-145



BID TABULATION

Item 
Num Item Units Qty Unit Price Total Unit Price Total Unit Price Total

Bidder No. 2

Minger Construction, Inc.

Bidder No. 3Bidder No. 1

G. F. Jedlicki, Inc. LaTour Construction, Inc.

Phone: 952-934-7272 320-963-5993 952-368-9200

Fax 952-934-7273 320-963-6017 952-368-9311

Signed By: Garrett Jedlicki Joseph LaTour Luke Minger

Title: President Vice President Vice President
Bid Bond Bid Bond Bid Bond
1, 2 1, 2 1, 2
jedlickigf@aol.com jimmy@latourconstruction.com lukem@mingerconst.comEmail

Bid Security:
Addenda Acknowledged:

193802383BT.xlsm BT-246



CITY OF MAPLE PLAIN 
Resolution No. 14-0411-02 

Accepting Bids for Budd Avenue Utility Improvements 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to an advertisement for bids for the Budd Avenue Utility Improvements, 
the improvement of Budd Avenue between Main Street East and Independence Street by utility 
and street improvements, bids were received, opened, and tabulated according to the law, and 
the following bids were received complying with the advertisement: 

 
 Contractor Total Base Bid

Low G.F. Jedlicki, Inc. $267,302.00
#2 LaTour Construction, Inc. $296,346.85
#3 Minger Construction, Inc. $337,188.10

 
 
AND WHEREAS, it appears that G.F Jedlicki, Inc. of Eden Prairie, Minnesota is the lowest 
responsible bidder, 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF MAPLE PLAIN, 
MINNESOTA: 
 
1. The mayor and administrator are hereby authorized and directed to enter into the attached 
contract with G.F. Jedlicki, Inc. of Eden Prairie, Minnesota in the name of the city of Maple Plain 
for the improvement of Budd Avenue between Main Street East and Independence Street 
according to the plans and specifications therefor approved by the city council and on file in the 
office of the city administrator. 
 
2. The city administrator is hereby authorized and directed to return forthwith to all bidders the 
deposits made with their bids, except that the deposits of the successful bidder and the next 
lowest bidder shall be retained until a contract has been signed. 
 
Adopted by the City Council this 14th day of April, 2014. 
 
 
 
               
         Mayor 
    ___________ 
City Administrator 
 
 
 

END OF FORM 

 

47


	0 CC AGENDA 04-14-2014
	1 CC Minutes 03-24-14
	2 CC Minutes Workshop 03-24-2014
	3 Payables
	3 Carson
	3 MFRA
	4 Memo_Open to Business Contract
	4 Open to Business Program Contract 2014-DFChanges
	5 Agenda Information Memorandum - Main St W & Rainbow Ave - resolution awarding project - 041014
	5 Client Bid Results Ltr & BT
	5 Option No. 1 - resolution accepting base bid & Alternate No. 1 - 041014
	6 Agenda Information Memorandum - Award Budd Avenue Sewer - 041014
	6 Client Bid Results Ltr & BT
	6 resolution  14-0411-02

	through: 27
	through_2: 30
	is the Bid Results Letter Bid Tabulation and Resolution: 41
	through_3: 44
	is the Bid Results Letter and Bid Tabulation and: 47
	Attached on pages: 21


